
 

 

1701 East Front Street 

Traverse City, MI    49686 

(231) 995-1010  

trustees@nmc.edu 

 

 

 

 

 

 Board of Trustees 
www.nmc.edu/trustees 

 

 

 
 

Meeting Agenda 
Monday, March 18, 2024 

at Hagerty Center, Room C 

Great Lakes Campus, 715 E. Front Street 

4:45 p.m. Reception with Student Government Association—Room A 

5:30 p.m.  Regular Meeting—Room C 

 

I. GENERAL BUSINESS 

A. Call to Order 

B. Roll Call 

C. Pledge of Allegiance 

D. Review of Agenda and Approval of Additions, Deletions, or Rearrangements 

 

II. STRATEGIC FOCUS 

E. Future-Focused Education—Jason Slade, Vice President of Strategic Initiatives, and 

Stephen Siciliano, Vice President for Educational Services 

 

III. REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

F. Program Focus: Student Government Association—SGA Members and SGA Advisors Ali 

Thornton & Lisa Thomas 

G. Faculty Report: Experiential Learning Institute Update—Kristy McDonald, Business Faculty, 

and Brandon Everest, Social Science Faculty; Co-Directors, Experiential Learning Institute 

H. FY25 Budget Process—Troy Kierczynski, Vice President of Finance and Administration 

 

IV. PUBLIC INPUT 

Each person wishing to address the Board during public comment must be present and shall 

provide their name, address, city, phone, and issue to be addressed on a form provided prior to 

the meeting. The topic addressed should be related to business within the jurisdiction of the 

Board. Forms will be collected and given to the Board Chair prior to the call for order. 

Comments will be limited to (3) three minutes in length per speaker. The Board will take public 

remarks into consideration, but will not comment at time of input. 

 

V. UPDATES 

I. President’s Update—President Nick Nissley 

J. Board Chair Update—Laura Oblinger, Chair 

 

We deliver lifelong learning opportunities to transform 

lives and enrich our communities. 

 

1



1701 East Front Street 

Traverse City, MI    49686 

(231) 995-1010  
trustees@nmc.edu 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Board of Trustees  
http://www.nmc.edu/trustees/ 

 March 18, 2024 Meeting Agenda 

 Page 2 

 

 

 

Posted Friday, March 15, 2024, 12:00 p.m. 

VI. CONSENT ITEMS (Pursuant to Policy A-105.00 Consent Agenda Items) 

These items will be adopted as a group without specific discussion.  When approving the 

meeting agenda, any Board member may request that a consent agenda item be moved to the 

regular agenda for discussion or questions. 

Recommend that the following items be approved: 

K. Minutes of the February 26, 2024, regular meeting  

L. Enrollment Report—Todd Neibauer, Vice President for Student Services and 

Technologies 

M. Financial Report—Troy Kierczynski, Vice President of Finance and Administration 

N. PRMC—Diana Fairbanks, Associate Vice President of Public Relations, Marketing, and 

Communications 

O. Foundation Report—Carly McCall, Director of Alumni Engagement 

P. Building and Site Committee—Ken Warner, Committee Chair 

Q. Executive Committee—Laura Oblinger, Chair 

 

VII. ACTION ITEMS 

R. New Jobs Training Program (Pursuant to Policy A-106.00 Finance) 

Recommend authorization for administration to enter into agreements under the Michigan 

New Jobs Training Program (MNJTP) for the following companies: 

• CBS Solar 

• Shoreline Power Services (amendment) 

• RJG, Inc. (amendment) 

 

VIII. REVIEW OF FOLLOW-UP REQUESTS 

Confirm requests made by the Board that require administrative follow-up for information to be 

provided to the Board at a later date. 

 

IX. ADJOURNMENT 

Upcoming Board Meeting Dates:      
All board meetings are open to the public. 

 

April 22, 2024—Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 

May 20, 2024—Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 (3rd Monday) 

June 24, 2024—Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 

July 22, 2024 – Aeropark Campus, Parsons-Stulen Room 222/224 

August 26, 2024 - Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 

September 23, 2024 – Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 

October 21, 2024 – Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 **Third Monday 

November 25, 2024 – Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 

December 16, 2024 – Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center, Room 106/107 **Third Monday  

 

 

2



To: Dr. Nick Nissley, President

From: Jason Slade, Vice President of Strategic Initiatives

Date: March 11, 2024

Subject: Strategic Initiatives Update:March 18, 2024 Board of Trustees Meeting
Topic: Strategy 1 - Future-Focused Education

Strategy 1: Future-Focused Education
Enhance offerings through flexible academic pathways, innovative instructional delivery models, and
relevant, hands-on educational experiences to empower global learners for the future. (Champion:
Stephen Siciliano)

Executive Summary:
This strategy is currently on track with 5 of the 5 objectives currently classified as “green” due to their
progress through the action steps. Associated metrics were updated this month to reflect Fall 2023 and
Spring 2024 where data was available. Metrics are trending upward toward target goals with the
exception of credit for prior learning and online courses. The online course percentages were expected
as the college continues to adapt to student demand. Complete metrics are included in the results below
along with baseline and targets.

Highlights and Successes:
● Accelerated pathways/courses (Objective 4) continue to be offered along with better advising for

students on the benefits and expectations of short courses. 26 courses offered this Spring across
multiple disciplines. This objective will close with the completion of Year 2 and move into a
monitoring mode.

● Experiential Learning Institute (ELI) has expanded the number of courses offering experiential
learning opportunities (ELO) resulting in 2,482 of 2,685 (92%) of students having an ELO
experience during Fall 2023!

Challenges and Opportunities:
● Objective 1 (Credit for Prior Learning) - After modest growth for credit for prior learning due to

MCCA promotion of industry standard credentials for credits, this objective has plateaued.
NMC continues to add new certifications to the database and is actively updating articulation
agreements with career tech centers and aligned high school programs. Additional opportunities
exist as we blur the transition from credit to noncredit (example: CompTIA fundamentals
workforce courses through EES converting to computer information technology credit).

● Objective 2 (Online Courses) - Analysis of student registration and advisor/dept. chair feedback
continues to be used to monitor the ratio of online to face-to-face courses. Our goal is to offer
courses in the format requested and needed by students. We will continue to work with advisors,
instructors, and chairs to find the correct mixture of course formats each semester.

● Objective 3 (Accelerated Courses) - Student performance has declined in the accelerated format,
especially in History and English. Continue to look at additional supports for those students and
identify courses that are a better fit for the faster-paced structure.

1

3



Strategy 1 - Future-Focused Education

Objective 1: Increase the annual number of students who receive prior learning credit from 236 to 270, using flexible
academic pathways, by December 2024.
Status of Action

Steps Baseline Data Trend Target Notes

2 On Schedule

Students
receiving credit
for prior learning

236
(3 year avg)

Students receiving
credit for prior

learning

2022-23: 241
2023-24: 226 (to date)

Students
receiving credit
for prior learning

270
by 12/31/2024

More gains will be made as
MCCA’s credit for certification
website becomes more widely
used and updated.

Continue to work with regional
career tech centers and our own
Extended Education Services to
identify more opportunities

Objective 2: Increase the proportion of online courses in Fall semester to 30% and in Spring semester to 35%.
Status of Action

Steps Baseline Current Target Notes

3 On Schedule

Proportion of
online courses

28% (Fall 21)

30% (Spring 22)

Proportion of online
courses

27% (Fall 22)
27% (Fall 23)

33% (Spring 23)
32% (Spring 24)

Proportion of
online courses

30% (Fall 24)

35% (Spring 25)

Percentage of online and
face-to-face classes continues to
be determined by demand,
advisor input, and instructor
qualifications.

Key courses (meteorology for
example) being targeted next
based on demand.

Objective 3: Increase student success and completion rates in online courses from 87% to 90% and hybrid courses from
92% to 95% by developing additional teaching strategies by December of 2024.
Status of Action

Steps Baseline Current Target Notes

2 Complete

NMC Completer
Success Rates:

Online 87%

Hybrid 92%

Success Rates:
F22 (online): 87%
S23 (online): 88%
F23 (online): 86%

F22 (hybrid): 93%
S23 (hybrid): 91%
F23 (hybrid): 91%

Student Success
Rates

Online 90%
Hybrid 95%
by 12/31/2024

Peer reviewers are all in place
and have begun providing
feedback on courses.

Hybrid continues to match our
face-to-face success rates (91%).

2

4



Objective 4: Create six shortened course pathways (two courses in one semester) in multiple academic disciplines by
May 2024.
Status of Action

Steps Baseline Current Target Notes

1 Complete

3 On Schedule

Shortened
pathways =
not tracked

F22 = 2 pathways

F23 = 11 pathways
(23 courses)

S24 = 12 pathways (26
courses)

Shortened
pathways =

6 by 5/15/2024

This goal has been exceeded by
pathways under the ASA/Gen Ed
for AAS category; Business
Admin; CIT, and WSI.

Accelerated MTH was not
popular. Continue to work with
department chairs and advisors
on needed pathways.

This objective has been met and
will close in May 2024.

Objective 5: Every credential-seeking student will engage in at least one ELO at NMC by September 2024
Status of Action

Steps Baseline Current Target Notes

5 On Schedule

Experiential
Learning

Opportunities =
not tracked

F22: 1,471 (ELO)
out of 2,700 --> 54%
of credential seeking
students had ELO

experience

S23: 1,584 (ELO)
out of 2,390 --> 66%
of credential seeking
students had ELO

experience

F23: 2482 (ELO) out
of 2,685 → 92% of
credential seeking
students had ELO

experience

~ 100% of
students by
9/15/2024

34 courses now designated as EL
immersive for Fall 23.

Investigating English courses for
EL designation which could
result in meeting target.

Will refine objective language in
year 3 to make this sustainable
beyond this plan.

Key
Green > 75% of scheduled actions supporting objective are on task
Yellow > 50% of scheduled actions supporting objective are on task
Red < 50% of scheduled actions supporting objective are on task

PDCA (Plan Do Check Adjust): No current feedback to champions from stakeholders/others.
Next Month: Strategy 2: Student Engagement & Success

3

5



NMC 
Experiential Learning Institute 
Update, 2024

Brandon Everest
Kristy McDonald 

Experiential Learning Institute Leadership Team
Co-Directors

Brandon Everest: beverest@nmc.edu

Kristy McDonald: kmcdonald@nmc.edu

EL Program Coordinator

Amy Burns-Bailey: aburns@nmc.edu

Vice President for Educational Services

Stephen Siciliano: ssiciliano@nmc.edu

Director of International Services & Service Learning

Jim Bensley: jbensley@nmc.edu

Director of Retention & Student Success

Lindsey Dickinson: ldickinson@nmc.edu

ELI Office Manager

Tracy Welch: twelch@nmc.edu

ELI Office: 231-995-1170

6



What is an Experiential 
Learning Opportunity 
(ELO)?

*Any opportunity* for 
learning that promotes “full 
cycle learning”, which 
includes intentional design 
for experiencing, reflecting, 
thinking and acting.

What is an 
Experiential 
Learning 
Opportunity 
(ELO)?

7



Curricular Mapping

Curricular mapping provides the college what it needs 
for its next steps in experiential learning.

● Identify strengths and gaps 

● Target opportunities for growth
○ Like course-level offerings and further consistency in 

programmatic learner experiences 

8



Professional Development and Support

Lunch and Learns
○ Smaller opportunities to learn with a special 

focus

PD Day and PD Day Workshops
○ Large faculty-wide workshops to identify and 

develop ELOs

EL101 Cohorts
○ Five module training for full development of ELOs

■ Learning Cycle
■ Learning Preferences
■ Learning Spaces
■ Faculty Roles

EL Fellowship
○ Deep dive to create Experiential Learning Designated 

Courses (ELDCs).
■ Rubric-based full course overhauls 

Professional Development and Support

9



Exploring a uniting endorsement for life and 
skills-based experiential education at NMC.

Voluntary, official and attached to the transcript.
● ELOs
● ELDCs
● Skills-based
● Stackable Credentials
● Micro Credentials
● Cocurricular & Extracurricular Activities
● Interdisciplinary/Wicked Problems

 

EL 
Endorsement

10



Board of Trustees  

FY25 Working Budget Update 
March 2024 

Page 1 of 19 03/10/2024

11



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

FISCAL YEAR 2025 WORKING BUDGET UPDATE 

FY25 BUDGET UPDATE 

MEMO: FY25 BUDGET UPDATE........................................................................................ 3 
FY25 WORKING BUDGET ................................................................................................. 4 

OPERATING REVENUE AND EXPENSE ASSUMPTIONS 

ENROLLMENT AND CONTACT HOURS ............................................................................... 4 
STATE APPROPRIATIONS REVENUE ................................................................................... 5 
PROPERTY TAX REVENUE ................................................................................................. 6 
LABOR EXPENSES ............................................................................................................. 7 
NON-LABOR EXPENSES AND TRANSFERS ......................................................................... 7 

MICHIGAN COMMUNITY COLLEGE COMPARATIVE DATA 

1-YEAR IN-DISTRICT TUITION AND FEE RATE CHANGE COMPARISON.…………….…. ... 8 
5-YEAR IN-DISTRICT TUITION COMPARISON .................................................................... 9 
5-YEAR OUT-OF-DISTRICT TUITION COMPARISON ......................................................... 10 
5-YEAR OUT-OF-STATE TUITION COMPARISON ............................................................. 11 
OPERATING REVENUE SOURCES COMPARISON ............................................................... 12 
TOTAL INSTITUTIONAL REVENUE SOURCES COMPARISON ............................................. 13 
PROPERTY TAXES: TAXABLE VALUES COMPARISON ...................................................... 14 
EXPENSES BY ACTIVITY COMPARISON ........................................................................... 15 
SALARY AND FRINGE BENEFIT COMPARISON ................................................................. 16 

OTHER DATA 

PROJECTIONS OF MICHIGAN HIGH SCHOOL GRADUATES THROUGH 2037. ..................... 17 
UNEMPLOYMENT BY COUNTY RANK ............................................................................. 18 

Page 2 of 19 03/10/2024

12



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

To: Dr. Nick Nissley, President 
From:  Troy Kierczynski, VP of Finance & Administration 
Date: March 8, 2024 
Subject: FY 2025 Budget Update 

This memo provides a 1-page summary of the significant assumptions used in developing the College’s 
FY25 working budget. The assumptions expressed below (letters A-G) correspond to the draft budget 
immediately following this memo. 

Key Revenue Assumptions: 
A. Enrollment and Tuition

 FY24 = 69,884 projected contact hours (summer registration ongoing)
 FY25 = 68,551 budgeted contact hours (↓2% FY24)
 Assumes 2.0% increase in tuition rates, no increase to general fee

B. Property Taxes – Assumes a 5% increase in GTC taxable values offset by Headlee rollback
C. State Sources – Assumes a 2% base operational increase
D. Foundation – Assumes increased programmatic and operational support
E. Investment Income – Assumes stronger yield due to favorable short-term rates (5%+ current)

Expense Assumptions: 
F. Labor – Contractual increases (2%) and the impact of certain staff changes, reorganizations,

and faculty voluntary severance plan have been considered in the working budget. Further, the
transition of certain labor to EduStaff reallocates labor costs to purchased services (non-labor).

G. Non-Labor – Non-labor expenses are currently presented at the amounts initially requested by
departmental budget managers. Transfers were increased for inflation, and debt service transfer
was added in anticipation of a debt issuance to support the Aviation Hangar project. Additional
analysis is needed to determine opportunities for non-labor reallocation and savings.

Next Budgeting Steps: 
 Monitor and analyze revenue assumptions

o State funding bills and legislation from the House and Senate
o Review federal and other grant funding opportunities
o Revise property tax assumptions when GTC equalization report becomes available

 Review labor and non-labor expense assumptions
o Determine budget areas that aren’t aligned with actual (over/under spend)
o Prioritize and distinguish needs vs. wants, align with strategic priorities

 NMC Budget Timeline:
o March & April – Review of revenues/expenses with budget managers and leadership
o April – Equalization report from Grand Traverse County
o May – 2nd Board Update; continued refinement of budget based on variables
o Early June – Budget Town Halls
o Late June – Board Budget and Tuition Rate Approval

MEMO 

Page 3 of 19 03/10/2024

13



Updated as of 3/10/2024

Approved Initial 3/5/24 Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected

Actual Actual Budget Budget Reference Budget Budget Budget Budget Budget
FY 22 FY23 FY 24 FY 25 from Memo FY 26 FY 27 FY 28 FY 29 FY 30

Revenue
Local Sources

Tuition & Fees 20,501,108$      21,323,999$     22,212,097$      23,695,363$      A 23,841,895$      25,389,059$      25,597,128$      25,731,258$      26,560,090$      
Property Taxes 11,961,680        12,663,865       13,900,791        14,332,055        B 14,723,156        14,980,416        15,248,631        15,642,917        15,918,395        

Total Local Sources 32,462,788        33,987,864       36,112,888        38,027,418        38,565,051        40,369,475        40,845,759        41,374,175        42,478,485        
State Sources 10,889,543        10,771,709       10,826,033        11,155,934        C 11,369,053        11,586,434        11,808,163        12,034,326        12,265,013        
Private Sources 1,230,624          1,333,616         1,175,242          1,323,140          D 1,369,822          1,381,589          1,438,568          1,498,396          1,561,216          
Investment Income 172,479             578,296            320,000             450,000             E 400,000             400,000             350,000             325,000             300,000             
Other Sources 532,187             674,483            495,000             617,000             642,000             642,000             642,000             642,000             642,000             

Total Revenues 45,287,621        47,345,968       48,929,163        51,573,493        52,345,927        54,379,498        55,084,490        55,873,897        57,246,714        

Expenditures
61 Salaries and Wages 22,874,809        23,517,092       25,137,687        24,708,362        F 24,938,303        25,389,066        25,875,250        26,484,629        27,117,691        
65 Benefits 9,002,088          9,418,688         10,286,740        10,523,977        F 10,595,987        10,789,002        11,064,371        11,355,471        11,676,768        

Total Labor Costs 31,876,897        32,935,780       35,424,427        35,232,338        35,534,289        36,178,068        36,939,621        37,840,100        38,794,459        

71 Purchased Services 2,364,932          3,073,784         2,895,004          4,222,567          G 4,540,167          4,813,977          5,069,843          5,216,616          5,375,540          
72 Supplies & Materials 2,648,865          2,861,325         3,107,437          3,384,460          G 3,485,994          3,555,714          3,626,828          3,699,365          3,773,352          
73 Internal Services 55,452 82,699              110,273             143,940             G 148,258             151,223             154,248             157,333             160,479             
74 Other Expenses 1,285,310          1,238,042         1,603,453          1,633,903          G 1,682,920          1,716,578          1,750,910          1,785,928          1,821,647          
75 Institutional Expenses 1,624,503          1,919,104         1,700,512          1,963,777          G 2,022,691          2,063,144          2,104,407          2,146,495          2,189,425          
76 Maintenance & Renovation 1,841,957          1,659,041         1,944,397          2,194,773          G 2,260,616          2,305,828          2,351,945          2,398,984          2,446,963          
77 Events/Trvl/Prof. Devel. 424,914             593,380            600,659             662,860             G 682,746             696,401             710,329             724,535             739,026             
78 Interest & Amort. (GASB 96) - 593,472 - - G - - - - - 
79 Capital Outlay 165,125             248,657 98,000 150,000             G 154,500             157,590             160,742             163,957             167,236             
80 Transfer - Deferred Maint. 1,292,826          1,170,000         1,230,000          1,400,000          G 1,540,000          1,617,000          1,697,850          1,782,743          1,871,880          

Total Expenditures 43,580,781        46,375,283       48,714,162        50,988,618        52,052,181        53,255,524        54,566,723        55,916,055        57,340,008        

Other Transfers 466,346             276,680            215,000             1,000,000          G 1,000,000          1,775,000          1,810,500          1,846,710          1,883,644          

Net Revenue (Loss) 1,240,494          694,005            - (415,126) (706,254)            (651,026)            (1,292,733)         (1,888,868)         (1,976,937)         

Revenue Assumptions
Enrollment (% change) -8% -2% -2% -1% -2% -1% 1%

Tuition Increase (% change) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%
Property Taxes (% change in TV) 9% 5% 4% 3% 3% 3% 3%

State Funding (% change) 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2% 2%

Expense Assumptions
Wage Scale Changes 2% 2% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%

Non-Labor (% change) -1% 5% 3% 3% 3% 3% 3%
Other assumptions VSP retirements, EduStaff savings, Aviation bond payments are considered

FY25 to FY30
General Fund Working Budget
Northwestern Michigan College

Page 4 of 19 03/10/2024

14



FY 2025 Working Budget 
Operating Revenue/Expense Assumptions 

Tuition and Fees Revenue 
Tuition and fee revenues are driven by enrollment and tuition rates. Demographic, economic, and social 
conditions significantly influence enrollment, which is on a slow downward trend in Michigan and 
nationally. NMC’s strategic plan attempts to mitigate the downward enrollment trends in higher 
education with our focus on the future of education and flexible pathways, success & retention efforts, 
and distinctive programming.  

Enrollment—Demographic Factors 
NMC contact hours by age group were as follows, per NMC’s Digital Dashboard: 

Actual Contact Hours % of Contact Hours 

AGE 
Fall 
2020 

Fall 
2021 

Fall 
2022 

Fall 
2023 

Fall 
2020 

Fall 
2021 

Fall 
2022 

Fall 
2023 

<=17 3,260 3,174 2,532 3,253 9% 9% 8% 10% 
18-20 16,801 15,137 15,609 15,453 48% 43% 47% 46% 
21-25 7,486 7,744 7,192 7,037 21% 22% 22% 21% 
26+ 7,620 9,273 7,987 7,869 22% 26% 24% 23% 

35,167 35,329 33,320 33,613 100% 100% 100% 100% 

The following table shows college enrollment for MI high school graduates for the classes of 2018 
through 2022 (from MI School Data): 

The pool of 18-20 year old (traditional) students in Michigan is declining, as well as their rate of 
enrollment in college. Looking to the future, the Western Interstate Commission for Higher 
Education (WICHE) projects a 15% decline in Michigan HS graduates from 2019 to 2037, with a 
13-year downward trend from 2024 to 2027.

Enrollment—Economic & Social Factors 
One reason fewer students are pursuing college is the strong labor market, with Grand Traverse County 
boasting the 8th lowest unemployment rate in Michigan (December 2023). Other common reasons 

Class of 2022         100,765          53,203 15,961 53%
Class of 2021           97,091          51,980 15,763 54%

Class of 2020           98,891          57,311 20,479 58%

Class of 2019         100,063          62,249 23,156 62%

Class of 2018         103,880          64,904 23,715 63%
Source:  https://mischooldata.org/college-enrollment-by-hs/

Cohort

Number 
Enrolled in
Community 

College

Number 
Enrolled in

Any College

Number of
Total 

Graduates

Percent 
Enrolled in 

Any 
College

College Enrollment by MI High School Class
(2017-18 to 2021-22)

Page 5 of 19 03/10/2024

15



students are forgoing college today include fear of amassing student debt, too stressful/mental health, 
family reasons, lack of career certainty, and the value perception that college is “not worth the money”. 

FY25 Enrollment and Contact Hour Assumptions 
The College assesses tuition as a rate per contact hour based on residency, therefore tuition/fee rates 
and contact hours are the key variables in projecting tuition revenue. Class sizes influence our net return 
on tuition. The FY25 working budget includes the following assumptions: 

 A 2% decrease in contact hours.
 A 2% increase in tuition rates.

NMC’s actual and budgeted contact hours are as follows: 

State Appropriations Revenue 
The Governor’s Fiscal Year 2025 Executive Budget proposes a base increase of 2.5% in operational 
funding for community colleges (and universities), or a $259,000 increase for NMC from our prior year 
base. There is currently tuition restraint language capping rate increases at 5.0%. The College’s 
working FY25 budget includes a projected 2.0% increase in state funding. We will continue to monitor 
proposed bills in the House and Senate for developments over the next few months. 

Property Tax Revenue 
The current working budget is built with an assumption of 5.0% increase in taxable values, offset by a 
1% millage reduction due to the Headlee rollback.   

Page 6 of 19 03/10/2024

16



 
 

Labor Expenses 
Labor costs represent 75% of NMC’s total budgeted expenses. Labor assumptions for FY25 are as 
follows: 
 
Regular Faculty and Staff 

 2% scale increase for regular faculty effective August 2024 (per contract) 
 2% scale increase for maintenance/custodial/grounds staff eff. Jan. 2025 (per contract) 
 2% scale increases for administrative, professional, technical, and clerical staff eff. Jan. 2025 
 Step increases for employees (as applicable per contract or wage tables) 
 Voluntary severance plan retirements (4) 
 Replacement of 13 staff/faculty positions (all open positions as of 1/31/24) 
 Increased participation in optional retirement plan (vs. MPSERS) 
 Decrease in MPSERS and FICA costs due to transition of adjuncts to EduStaff 

Adjunct Instructors and Other Part-Time Staff 
 2% scale increase for adjunct faculty effective August 2024 
 Student and supplemental wage rate increases as follows are planned for in FY25: 

 
3/2/24 & Prior 

Old Rates 
3/3/24 

New Rates 
 

NMC Edustaff NMC Edustaff 

Students $12.00 n/a $14.00 n/a 

Supplementals - Tier 1 $14.00 $14.98  
$16.50 

 
$17.66 

Supplementals - Tier 2 $15.00 $16.05 

Supplementals - Tier 3 $16.00 $17.12 $17.50 $18.73 

 
 

Non-Labor Expenses & Transfers 
Non-labor expenses include purchased services [audit, legal, tax, contracted facilities management and 
security, EES instructors, advertising and promotional expenses], supplies & materials, utilities, 
maintenance and renovation, professional development, internal services, and capital outlay. The FY24 
budget included $12.0m of expenses in these categories, while the FY25 budget includes $13.2m based 
on initial departmental requests. An additional $1.1m was included in purchased services for contracted 
labor through EduStaff [newly hired adjunct instructors and supplemental support staff], for a total of 
$14.4m in non-labor expenses. Through budget approval in June, departmental budgets will be 
carefully reviewed and analyzed for savings and re-allocation opportunities.  
 
Transfers are budgeted out of NMC’s general operating fund to support deferred maintenance (plant 
fund), the strategic fund and fund for transformation, Aviation equipment, and technology upgrades. 
Additional transfers are planned for FY25 and beyond in anticipation of a bond issuance and required 
debt service for the Aviation project.  

Page 7 of 19 03/10/2024

17



based on 30 hours
[sorted ↓]

Community College Name FY 2022‐23 Tuition
2022‐23 Per Hour 
Mandatory Fees

2022‐23 Per 
Semester 

Mandatory Fees

2022‐23 Total Cost 
per 

Credit/Contact 
Hour

2021‐22 Total Cost 
per 

Credit/Contact 
Hour

Total Cost per 
Credit/Contact 
Hour Difference

% Change
2022‐23 Annual 
Tuition and Fees 

Costs

Jackson College $176.00 $48.50 $0.00 $224.50 $214.00 $10.50 4.91% $6,735
Southwestern Michigan College $133.00 $56.75 $0.00 $189.75 $181.00 $8.75 4.83% $5,693
Bay de Noc Community College $144.00 $45.00 $0.00 $189.00 $180.00 $9.00 5.00% $5,670
St. Clair County Community College $146.00 $37.00 $0.00 $183.00 $177.33 $5.67 3.20% $5,490
Mid Michigan College $142.00 $34.50 $50.00 $179.83 $171.33 $8.50 4.96% $5,395
Mott Community College $145.02 $19.36 $145.02 $174.05 $174.05 $0.00 0.00% $5,221
Glen Oaks Community College $130.00 $39.00 $0.00 $169.00 $165.00 $4.00 2.42% $5,070
Muskegon Community College $125.00 $41.50 $35.00 $168.83 $163.83 $5.00 3.05% $5,065
Lake Michigan College $168.25 $0.00 $0.00 $168.25 $162.00 $6.25 3.86% $5,048
North Central Michigan College $138.00 $30.00 $0.00 $168.00 $160.00 $8.00 5.00% $5,040
Alpena Community College $145.00 $19.00 $30.00 $166.00 $161.00 $5.00 3.11% $4,980
Montcalm Community College $117.00 $44.00 $0.00 $161.00 $159.00 $2.00 1.26% $4,830
Schoolcraft College $131.00 $26.00 $55.00 $160.67 $154.87 $5.80 3.75% $4,820
Kirtland Community College $132.00 $27.00 $0.00 $159.00 $152.00 $7.00 4.61% $4,770
Kellogg Community College $127.50 $27.00 $0.00 $154.50 $151.50 $3.00 1.98% $4,635
Northwestern Michigan College $118.00 $32.00 $40.00 $152.67 $145.17 $7.50 5.17% $4,580
Gogebic Community College $134.00 $12.00 $60.00 $150.00 $146.00 $4.00 2.74% $4,500
Delta College $121.00 $25.00 $40.00 $148.67 $145.67 $3.00 2.06% $4,460
Monroe County Community College $119.75 $25.00 $40.00 $147.42 $144.42 $3.00 2.08% $4,423
Henry Ford College $108.00 $24.00 $110.00 $139.33 $136.08 $3.25 2.39% $4,180
West Shore Community College $115.00 $22.50 $0.00 $137.50 $130.00 $7.50 5.77% $4,125
Grand Rapids Community College $118.00 $5.50 $147.00 $133.30 $132.30 $1.00 0.76% $3,999
Lansing Community College $114.00 $15.00 $25.00 $130.67 $130.67 $0.00 0.00% $3,920
Kalamazoo Valley Community College $120.00 $0.00 $158.00 $130.53 $128.40 $2.13 1.66% $3,916
Wayne County Community College $109.10 $13.50 $50.00 $125.93 $125.93 $0.00 0.00% $3,778
Macomb Community College $106.00 $5.00 $124.00 $119.27 $113.00 $6.27 5.55% $3,578
Oakland Community College $103.00 $0.00 $110.00 $110.33 $105.67 $4.67 4.42% $3,310
Washtenaw Community College $95.00 $15.00 $0.00 $110.00 $105.00 $5.00 4.76% $3,300
State Average $127.88 $24.61 $43.54 $155.39 $150.54 $4.85 3.22% $4,662
Table of Contents Page

Table 14A
In‐District Tuition and Fee Rate Change
2022‐23

 Data are current as of 12/13/2023  Page 1 of 1 
Page 8 of 19 03/10/2024

18



In-District Tuition History
All Community Colleges
For Years 2019-2023

Sorted ↓
Tuition Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall Avg % change

Rank Community College Basis 2019 % change 2020 % change 2021 % change 2022 % change 2023 % change 5 YEAR

1 Jackson Community College Contact 160.25$ 4.9% 163.46$ 2.0% 168.00$ 2.8% 176.00$ 4.8% 185.00$ 5.1% 3.9%
2 Lake Michigan College Credit 105.50$ 1.4% 158.75$ 50.5% 162.00$ 2.0% 168.25$ 3.9% 175.50$ 4.3% 12.4%
3 Mott Community College Contact 143.58$ 2.2% 143.58$ 0.0% 145.02$ 1.0% 145.02$ 0.0% 151.55$ 4.5% 1.5%
4 Bay De Noc Community College Contact 129.00$ 4.0% 135.00$ 4.7% 140.00$ 3.7% 144.00$ 2.9% 150.00$ 4.2% 3.9%
5 Alpena Community College Contact 137.00$ 3.0% 137.00$ 0.0% 141.00$ 2.9% 145.00$ 2.8% 150.00$ 3.4% 2.4%
6 St. Clair County Community College Contact 131.00$ 7.4% 136.00$ 3.8% 139.00$ 2.2% 146.00$ 5.0% 149.00$ 2.1% 4.1%
7 Mid-Michigan Community College Contact 129.00$ 3.2% 132.00$ 2.3% 137.00$ 3.8% 142.00$ 3.6% 148.00$ 4.2% 3.4%
8 North Central Michigan College Credit 125.00$ 5.0% 129.00$ 3.2% 132.00$ 2.3% 138.00$ 4.5% 144.00$ 4.3% 3.9%
9 Southwestern Michigan College Credit 123.25$ 1.9% 125.50$ 1.8% 126.75$ 1.0% 133.00$ 4.9% 139.00$ 4.5% 2.8%
10 Kirtland Community College Credit 121.00$ 2.5% 121.00$ 0.0% 126.00$ 4.1% 132.00$ 4.8% 138.00$ 4.5% 3.2%
11 Gogebic Community College Credit 124.00$ 3.3% 127.00$ 2.4% 130.00$ 2.4% 134.00$ 3.1% 138.00$ 3.0% 2.8%
12 Schoolcraft College Credit 118.00$ 2.6% 123.00$ 4.2% 126.00$ 2.4% 131.00$ 4.0% 135.00$ 3.1% 3.3%
13 Glen Oaks Community College Contact 123.00$ 3.4% 126.00$ 2.4% 126.00$ 0.0% 130.00$ 3.2% 133.00$ 2.3% 2.3%
14 Kellogg Community College Credit 111.25$ 3.2% 121.75$ 9.4% 124.50$ 2.3% 127.50$ 2.4% 131.25$ 2.9% 4.1%
15 Muskegon Community College Credit 117.00$ 3.1% 121.50$ 3.8% 121.50$ 0.0% 125.00$ 2.9% 130.00$ 4.0% 2.8%
16 Delta College Credit 115.00$ 2.7% 117.00$ 1.7% 119.00$ 1.7% 121.00$ 1.7% 127.00$ 5.0% 2.6%
17 Monroe County Community College Credit 112.25$ 2.5% 114.50$ 2.0% 116.75$ 2.0% 119.75$ 2.6% 124.54$ 4.0% 2.6%
18 Kalamazoo Valley Community College Credit 110.00$ 2.8% 114.00$ 3.6% 118.00$ 3.5% 120.00$ 1.7% 124.00$ 3.3% 3.0%
19 Northwestern Michigan College Contact 109.00$ 2.9% 109.00$ 0.0% 112.00$ 2.8% 118.00$ 5.4% 122.00$ 3.4% 2.9%
20 West Shore Community College Credit 106.00$ 2.9% 106.00$ 0.0% 110.00$ 3.8% 115.00$ 4.5% 120.00$ 4.3% 3.1%
21 Grand Rapids Community College Contact 115.00$ 0.9% 117.00$ 1.7% 117.00$ 0.0% 118.00$ 0.9% 120.00$ 1.7% 1.0%
22 Montcalm Community College Contact 110.00$ 1.9% 113.00$ 2.7% 115.00$ 1.8% 117.00$ 1.7% 119.00$ 1.7% 2.0%
23 Lansing Community College Credit 108.00$ 2.9% 111.00$ 2.8% 114.00$ 2.7% 114.00$ 0.0% 117.00$ 2.6% 2.2%
24 Wayne County Community College Credit 109.10$ 0.0% 109.10$ 0.0% 109.10$ 0.0% 109.10$ 0.0% 112.00$ 2.7% 0.5%
25 Henry Ford Community College Credit 101.50$ 2.5% 101.50$ 0.0% 105.75$ 4.2% 108.00$ 2.1% 111.00$ 2.8% 2.3%
26 Macomb Community College Credit 102.00$ 2.0% 102.00$ 0.0% 104.00$ 2.0% 106.00$ 1.9% 111.00$ 4.7% 2.1%
27 Oakland Community College Credit 94.50$   2.7% 97.00$   2.6% 99.00$   2.1% 103.00$ 4.0% 107.00$ 3.9% 3.1%
28 Washtenaw Community College Credit 95.00$   0.0% 95.00$   0.0% 95.00$   0.0% 95.00$   0.0% 99.00$   4.2% 0.8%

03.05.24 cjb

Page 9 of 19 03/10/2024

19



Out-of-District Tuition History
All Community Colleges
For Years 2019-2023

Sorted ↓
Tuition Fall Fall Fall Fall Fall Avg % change

Rank Community College Basis 2019 % change 2020 % change 2021 % change 2022 % change 2023 % change 5-YEAR

1 St. Clair County Community College Contact 257.00$   8.0% 257.00$   0.0% 260.00$   1.2% 275.00$   5.8% 276.00$ 0.4% 3.1%
2 Northwestern Michigan College Contact 227.00$   3.0% 227.00$   0.0% 234.00$   3.1% 246.00$   5.1% 261.00$ 6.1% 3.5%
3 Bay De Noc Community College Contact 221.00$   3.8% 231.00$   4.5% 240.00$   3.9% 247.00$   2.9% 258.00$ 4.5% 3.9%
4 Grand Rapids Community College Contact 245.00$   0.4% 247.00$   0.8% 247.00$   0.0% 249.00$   0.8% 253.00$ 1.6% 0.7%
5 Lake Michigan College Credit 170.50$   3.0% 224.75$   31.8% 229.50$   2.1% 238.25$   3.8% 250.00$ 4.9% 9.1%
6 Mid-Michigan Community College Contact 217.00$   3.3% 220.00$   1.4% 229.00$   4.1% 237.00$   3.5% 247.00$ 4.2% 3.3%
7 Muskegon Community College Credit 218.00$   2.8% 227.00$   4.1% 227.00$   0.0% 234.00$   3.1% 243.00$ 3.8% 2.8%
8 North Central Michigan College Credit 207.00$   4.5% 214.00$   3.4% 219.00$   2.3% 229.00$   4.6% 240.00$ 4.8% 3.9%
9 Alpena Community College Contact 217.00$   3.3% 217.00$   0.0% 224.00$   3.2% 231.00$   3.1% 239.00$ 3.5% 2.6%

10 Lansing Community College Credit 216.00$   2.9% 222.00$   2.8% 228.00$   2.7% 228.00$   0.0% 234.00$ 2.6% 2.2%
11 Montcalm Community College Contact 208.00$   2.0% 214.00$   2.9% 218.00$   1.9% 222.00$   1.8% 226.00$ 1.8% 2.1%
12 Monroe County Community College Credit 199.50$   2.6% 203.50$   2.0% 207.50$   2.0% 212.75$   2.5% 221.26$ 4.0% 2.6%
13 Kalamazoo Valley Community College Credit 189.00$   2.7% 197.00$   4.2% 204.00$   3.6% 207.00$   1.5% 214.00$ 3.4% 3.1%
14 Delta College Credit 197.00$   2.6% 199.00$   1.0% 202.00$   1.5% 205.00$   1.5% 214.00$ 4.4% 2.2%
15 Kellogg Community College Credit 180.50$   3.3% 197.75$   9.6% 202.25$   2.3% 206.75$   2.2% 212.50$ 2.8% 4.0%
16 Jackson Community College Contact 240.38$   4.9% 245.19$   2.0% 190.00$   -22.5% 199.00$   4.7% 209.00$ 5.0% -1.2%
17 Macomb Community College Credit 190.00$   2.2% 190.00$   0.0% 194.00$   2.1% 198.00$   2.1% 208.00$ 5.1% 2.3%
18 Kirtland Community College Credit 182.00$   4.0% 182.00$   0.0% 187.00$   2.7% 194.00$   3.7% 205.00$ 5.7% 3.2%
19 Oakland Community College Credit 183.00$   2.8% 188.00$   2.7% 192.00$   2.1% 199.00$   3.6% 205.00$ 3.0% 2.9%
20 Glen Oaks Community College Contact 187.00$   2.7% 192.00$   2.7% 192.00$   0.0% 196.00$   2.1% 199.00$ 1.5% 1.8%
21 Gogebic Community College Credit 175.00$   2.9% 180.00$   2.9% 185.00$   2.8% 191.00$   3.2% 197.00$ 3.1% 3.0%
22 Schoolcraft College Credit 171.00$   3.0% 177.00$   3.5% 182.00$   2.8% 188.00$   3.3% 194.00$ 3.2% 3.2%
23 Henry Ford Community College Credit 177.00$   2.9% 177.00$   0.0% 184.50$   4.2% 188.00$   1.9% 194.00$ 3.2% 2.4%
24 Mott Community College Contact 183.40$   0.0% 183.40$   0.0% 185.23$   1.0% 185.23$   0.0% 193.57$ 4.5% 1.1%
25 West Shore Community College Credit 170.00$   3.0% 170.00$   0.0% 175.00$   2.9% 185.00$   5.7% 185.00$ 0.0% 2.3%
26 Southwestern Michigan College Credit 161.50$   2.2% 164.75$   2.0% 166.50$   1.1% 174.50$   4.8% 183.00$ 4.9% 3.0%
27 Washtenaw Community College Credit 164.00$   1.9% 164.00$   0.0% 167.00$   1.8% 169.00$   1.2% 176.00$ 4.1% 1.8%
28 Wayne County Community College Credit 118.30$   0.0% 118.30$   0.0% 118.30$   0.0% 118.30$   0.0% 121.20$ 2.5% 0.5%

03.05.24 cjb

Page 10 of 19 03/10/2024

20



Out-of-State Tuition History
All Community Colleges
For Years 2019-2023

Sorted ↓
Tuition Fall % of Fall % of Fall % of Fall % of Fall % of Avg % change

Rank Community College Basis 2019 Change 2020 Change 2021 Change 2022 Change 2023 Change 5-YEAR

1 St. Clair County Community College Contact 375.00$   8.1% 375.00$   0.0% 378.00$   0.8% 396.00$ 4.8% 399.00$ 0.8% 2.9%
2 Grand Rapids Community College Contact 365.00$   0.8% 371.00$   1.6% 371.00$   0.0% 374.00$ 0.8% 380.00$ 1.6% 1.0%
3 Montcalm Community College Contact 340.00$   2.1% 350.00$   2.9% 357.00$   2.0% 364.00$ 2.0% 371.00$ 1.9% 2.2%
4 Lansing Community College Credit 324.00$   2.9% 333.00$   2.8% 342.00$   2.7% 342.00$ 0.0% 351.00$ 2.6% 2.2%
5 Northwestern Michigan College Contact 296.00$   3.1% 296.00$   0.0% 305.00$   3.0% 320.00$ 4.9% 340.00$ 6.3% 3.5%
6 Muskegon Community College Credit 306.00$   3.0% 318.00$   3.9% 318.00$   0.0% 327.00$ 2.8% 340.00$ 4.0% 2.8%
7 Bay De Noc Community College Contact 270.00$   3.8% 282.00$   4.4% 293.00$   3.9% 302.00$ 3.1% 316.00$ 4.6% 4.0%
8 North Central Michigan College Credit 269.00$   4.7% 278.00$   3.3% 284.00$   2.2% 297.00$ 4.6% 310.00$ 4.4% 3.8%
9 Kellogg Community College Credit 258.00$   3.2% 282.00$   9.3% 288.00$   2.1% 294.25$ 2.2% 302.25$ 2.7% 3.9%
10 Kalamazoo Valley Community College Credit 254.00$   2.8% 264.00$   3.9% 273.00$   3.4% 276.00$ 1.1% 285.00$ 3.3% 2.9%
11 Kirtland Community College Credit 260.00$   4.0% 260.00$   0.0% 260.00$   0.0% 270.00$ 3.8% 285.00$ 5.6% 2.7%
12 Henry Ford Community College Credit 257.00$   2.8% 257.00$   0.0% 267.50$   4.1% 273.00$ 2.1% 281.00$ 2.9% 2.4%
13 Jackson Community College Contact 320.50$   4.9% 326.91$   2.0% 327.00$   0.0% 264.00$ -19.3% 277.00$ 4.9% -1.5%
14 Mott Community College Contact 261.40$   0.0% 261.40$   0.0% 264.01$   1.0% 264.01$ 0.0% 275.89$ 4.5% 1.1%
15 Schoolcraft College Credit 252.00$   2.9% 260.00$   3.2% 262.00$   0.8% 265.00$ 1.1% 268.00$ 1.1% 1.8%
16 West Shore Community College Credit 240.00$   4.3% 240.00$   0.0% 250.00$   4.2% 255.00$ 2.0% 265.00$ 3.9% 2.9%
17 Macomb Community College Credit 242.00$   2.1% 242.00$   0.0% 247.00$   2.1% 252.00$ 2.0% 265.00$ 5.2% 2.3%
18 Lake Michigan College Credit 254.00$   5.0% 224.75$   -11.5% 229.50$   2.1% 238.25$ 3.8% 250.00$ 4.9% 0.9%
19 Washtenaw Community College Credit 227.00$   3.2% 227.00$   0.0% 234.00$   3.1% 239.00$ 2.1% 249.00$ 4.2% 2.5%
20 Mid-Michigan Community College Contact 217.00$   3.3% 220.00$   1.4% 229.00$   4.1% 237.00$ 3.5% 247.00$ 4.2% 3.3%
21 Monroe County Community College Credit 222.00$   2.5% 226.50$   2.0% 231.00$   2.0% 237.00$ 2.6% 246.48$ 4.0% 2.6%
22 Alpena Community College Contact 217.00$   3.3% 217.00$   0.0% 224.00$   3.2% 231.00$ 3.1% 239.00$ 3.5% 2.6%
23 Glen Oaks Community College Contact 222.00$   2.8% 228.00$   2.7% 228.00$   0.0% 232.00$ 1.8% 235.00$ 1.3% 1.7%
24 Gogebic Community College Credit 204.00$   2.5% 209.00$   2.5% 214.00$   2.4% 220.00$ 2.8% 226.00$ 2.7% 2.6%
25 Delta College Credit 371.00$   2.8% 373.00$   0.5% 210.00$   -43.7% 214.00$ 1.9% 224.00$ 4.7% -6.8%
26 Oakland Community College Credit 183.00$   2.8% 188.00$   2.7% 192.00$   2.1% 199.00$ 3.6% 205.00$ 3.0% 2.9%
27 Southwestern Michigan College Credit 176.00$   2.3% 179.50$   2.0% 181.25$   1.0% 190.00$ 4.8% 199.00$ 4.7% 3.0%
28 Wayne County Community College Credit 148.90$   0.0% 148.90$   0.0% 148.90$   0.0% 148.90$ 0.0% 151.80$ 1.9% 0.4%

03.05.24 cjb

Page 11 of 19 03/10/2024

21



Sorted ↓

Community College Name
Gross Tuition & 

Fees %
Property Tax %

State 
Appropriations %

Personal 
Property Tax 
Replacement %

Other Revenue 
%

Total %

Mid Michigan College 58% 17% 23% 0% 2% 100%
Jackson College 52% 13% 31% 1% 3% 100%
Henry Ford College 46% 14% 32% 5% 3% 100%
Northwestern Michigan College 42% 25% 29% 0% 4% 100%
Bay de Noc Community College 42% 14% 33% 2% 9% 100%
St. Clair County Community College 40% 34% 22% 1% 2% 100%
Muskegon Community College 37% 27% 31% 2% 2% 100%
Mott Community College 37% 27% 29% 1% 6% 100%
Grand Rapids Community College 37% 30% 27% 2% 4% 100%
Schoolcraft College 37% 36% 23% 2% 2% 100%
Southwestern Michigan College 36% 27% 33% 1% 4% 100%
Kellogg Community College 36% 25% 33% 4% 3% 100%
Macomb Community College 36% 32% 25% 3% 4% 100%
Alpena Community College 35% 16% 44% 1% 4% 100%
Kirtland Community College 35% 43% 20% 1% 1% 100%
Delta College 34% 30% 29% 4% 3% 100%
North Central Michigan College 33% 36% 25% 0% 5% 100%
Gogebic Community College 32% 15% 51% 0% 2% 100%
Kalamazoo Valley Community College 32% 33% 27% 4% 5% 100%
Lansing Community College 30% 38% 28% 0% 4% 100%
Montcalm Community College 28% 39% 29% 0% 4% 100%
Washtenaw Community College 26% 53% 13% 1% 7% 100%
Oakland Community College 25% 57% 14% 1% 1% 100%
Monroe County Community College 24% 52% 19% 3% 2% 100%
Glen Oaks Community College 22% 41% 22% 10% 4% 100%
Lake Michigan College 22% 51% 17% 1% 8% 100%
West Shore Community College 20% 50% 19% 4% 7% 100%
Wayne County Community College 18% 62% 15% 3% 1% 100%
State Aggregate 33% 37% 24% 2% 4% 100%
Other Revenue includes revenue sources such as grant and contract revenue, investment income, rental income, indirect cost recovery, non‐academic sales/fees, etc.

Table 22
Operating Revenue Sources (Operating Funds Only)
2022-23

current as of 3/4/2024  Page 1 of 1 
Page 12 of 19 03/10/2024

22



Sorted ↓

Community College Name
Gross Tuition & 

Fees %
Property Tax %

State 
Appropriations %

Personal Property 
Tax Replacement 

%

Contracts and 
Grants %

Other 
Revenue %

Total %

Mid Michigan College 35% 14% 19% 0% 7% 25% 100%
St. Clair County Community College 32% 28% 18% 1% 2% 20% 100%
Northwestern Michigan College 30% 20% 20% 0% 6% 23% 100%
Bay de Noc Community College 29% 18% 25% 2% 4% 23% 100%
Schoolcraft College 25% 30% 17% 2% 6% 20% 100%
Grand Rapids Community College 25% 32% 19% 2% 8% 15% 100%
Alpena Community College 25% 14% 29% 1% 15% 17% 100%
Kellogg Community College 23% 26% 24% 4% 10% 13% 100%
Kirtland Community College 23% 42% 18% 1% 3% 13% 100%
Macomb Community College 22% 28% 23% 3% 7% 17% 100%
Delta College 21% 24% 21% 3% 5% 26% 100%
Kalamazoo Valley Community College 21% 31% 19% 4% 5% 21% 100%
Henry Ford College 20% 12% 23% 4% 12% 29% 100%
Southwestern Michigan College 20% 25% 30% 0% 3% 22% 100%
Jackson College 20% 12% 28% 1% 13% 27% 100%
Lansing Community College 20% 34% 25% 0% 6% 15% 100%
Mott Community College 19% 29% 17% 1% 13% 22% 100%
Washtenaw Community College 18% 45% 15% 1% 3% 18% 100%
Montcalm Community College 17% 31% 16% 0% 3% 33% 100%
Gogebic Community College 17% 14% 42% 0% 9% 19% 100%
Muskegon Community College 16% 26% 24% 2% 22% 11% 100%
North Central Michigan College 16% 31% 18% 0% 6% 29% 100%
Oakland Community College 15% 52% 18% 1% 2% 13% 100%
Lake Michigan College 15% 50% 15% 1% 6% 13% 100%
Monroe County Community College 15% 48% 19% 2% 5% 11% 100%
Glen Oaks Community College 13% 36% 16% 9% 9% 17% 100%
West Shore Community College 9% 49% 19% 3% 4% 17% 100%
Wayne County Community College 7% 51% 19% 3% 2% 18% 100%
State Aggregate 20% 33% 20% 2% 6% 19% 100%
Other Revenue includes revenue sources such as grant and contract revenue, investment income, rental income, indirect cost recovery, non‐academic sales/fees, etc.
State appropriations include operations and MPSERS UAAL stabilization payments per the appropriations basis. Remaining appropriations are per the financial statement basis.

Table 22A
Total Institutional Revenue Sources (All Funds)
2022‐23 

 Data are current as of 3/4/2024  Page 1 of 1 Page 13 of 19 03/10/2024

23



Community College Name 2017‐18 2018‐19 2019‐20 2020‐21 2021‐22 2022‐23
1 Year Change 

Amount
1 Year Change 

Percent
Alpena Community College $1,032,094,126 $1,051,507,048 $1,079,984,959 $1,107,984,959 $1,138,202,018 $1,201,206,086 $63,004,068 5.5%
Bay de Noc Community College $1,136,362,042 $1,163,052,026 $1,181,371,028 $1,202,466,865 $1,252,498,569 $1,331,961,448 $79,462,879 6.3%
Delta College $11,225,167,750 $11,171,935,719 $11,410,435,112 $11,698,285,138 $11,955,562,524 $12,581,603,567 $626,041,043 5.2%
Glen Oaks Community College $2,018,277,811 $2,081,355,482 $2,133,459,753 $2,217,648,793 $2,335,165,707 $2,502,548,328 $167,382,621 7.2%
Gogebic Community College $516,404,749 $525,201,859 $538,083,071 $554,426,229 $566,713,519 $595,728,765 $29,015,246 5.1%
Grand Rapids Community College $22,568,989,921 $23,664,582,277 $25,051,273,439 $26,304,636,877 $27,491,255,358 $29,433,413,716 $1,942,158,358 7.1%
Henry Ford College $3,406,748,520 $3,536,144,827 $3,702,545,215 $3,768,970,975 $3,887,623,308 $4,071,516,134 $183,892,826 4.7%
Jackson College $4,346,983,948 $4,474,927,017 $4,658,811,585 $4,833,228,277 $4,992,122,444 $5,275,066,232 $282,943,788 5.7%
Kalamazoo Valley Community College $8,258,864,636 $8,538,182,782 $8,912,345,260 $9,294,396,443 $9,588,315,895 $10,115,550,782 $527,234,887 5.5%
Kellogg Community College $3,327,494,640 $3,425,669,947 $3,544,572,231 $3,641,029,366 $3,736,950,594 $3,943,841,361 $206,890,767 5.5%
Kirtland Community College $3,098,560 $3,155,222,765 $3,237,595,595 $3,325,182,705 $3,502,457,486 $3,764,285,656 $261,828,170 7.5%
Lake Michigan College $9,218,055,251 $9,430,241,451 $9,578,172,573 $9,781,578,478 $10,037,424,746 $10,467,483,542 $430,058,796 4.3%
Lansing Community College $10,963,548,011 $11,392,083,246 $11,826,622,757 $12,316,500,113 $12,807,735,430 $13,529,224,490 $721,489,060 5.6%
Macomb Community College $25,973,604,842 $27,080,581,081 $28,433,981,281 $29,766,244,229 $30,914,252,659 $32,829,595,084 $1,915,342,425 6.2%
Mid Michigan College $1,902,138,967 $1,950,845,632 $2,013,118,088 $2,085,119,351 $3,292,654,954 $3,516,967,940 $224,312,986 6.8%
Monroe County Community College $5,800,466,919 $5,999,857,895 $6,285,951,847 $6,438,224,478 $6,562,867,357 $6,776,572,580 $213,705,223 3.3%
Montcalm Community College $2,322,852,973 $2,389,780,328 $2,480,567,762 $2,582,261,638 $2,777,685,623 $2,936,390,541 $158,704,918 5.7%
Mott Community College $9,499,886,457 $9,889,363,021 $10,333,129,544 $10,805,507,950 $11,242,755,329 $11,843,551,557 $600,796,228 5.3%
Muskegon Community College $4,471,036,770 $4,625,374,470 $4,790,920,451 $4,790,920,451 $4,975,161,394 $5,307,848,140 $332,686,746 6.7%
North Central Michigan College $2,892,144,984 $3,013,193,770 $3,140,180,405 $3,265,737,883 $3,474,233,569 $3,758,698,918 $284,465,349 8.2%
Northwestern Michigan College $4,868,438,486 $5,106,798,342 $5,368,654,721 $5,651,352,613 $5,901,559,989 $6,383,535,930 $481,975,941 8.2%
Oakland Community College $56,754,560,304 $59,728,372,469 $59,728,372,469 $62,396,511,395 $64,796,704,355 $68,986,589,909 $4,189,885,554 6.5%
Schoolcraft College $13,584,313,126 $14,164,300,644 $14,873,300,846 $15,546,260,461 $15,965,312,950 $16,872,891,110 $907,578,160 5.7%
Southwestern Michigan College $2,351,577,949 $2,453,048,111 $2,453,048,111 $2,554,849,022 $2,665,051,765 $2,829,039,729 $163,987,964 6.2%
St. Clair County Community College $5,334,704,472 $5,480,846,567 $5,714,836,361 $5,939,557,924 $6,170,699,583 $6,475,780,319 $305,080,736 4.9%
Washtenaw Community College $15,419,424,957 $16,286,126,038 $17,267,487,572 $18,096,888,421 $18,751,871,817 $19,845,043,546 $1,093,171,729 5.8%
Wayne County Community College $22,801,071,639 $23,792,813,396 $24,731,733,799 $25,595,521,275 $26,378,152,696 $28,182,735,678 $1,804,582,982 6.8%
West Shore Community College $3,089,555,103 $3,199,018,351 $3,302,837,887 $3,302,837,887 $3,391,914,919 $3,543,730,162 $151,815,243 4.5%
State Aggregate $255,087,867,913 $268,770,426,561 $277,773,393,722 $288,864,130,196 $300,552,906,557 $318,902,401,250 $18,349,494,693 6.1%
Table of Contents Page

Table 8
Taxable Value
2022‐23

 Data are current as of 12/13/2023  Page 1 of 1 Page 14 of 19 03/10/2024

24



Community College Name Instruction
Information 
Technology

Public Service
Academic 
Support

Student Services
Institutional 
Support

Physical Plant 
Operations

Total

Alpena Community College 45.6% 8.5% 1.3% 10.4% 11.0% 13.3% 10.0% 100.0%
Bay de Noc Community College 39.0% 9.0% 0.9% 9.6% 18.2% 12.1% 11.3% 100.0%
Delta College 51.0% 5.5% 1.8% 9.0% 11.3% 11.1% 10.4% 100.0%
Glen Oaks Community College 31.5% 8.6% 1.4% 9.8% 13.9% 24.3% 10.5% 100.0%
Gogebic Community College 42.2% 2.7% 3.9% 9.0% 16.0% 18.2% 8.0% 100.0%
Grand Rapids Community College 44.7% 7.3% 1.8% 11.7% 10.6% 11.6% 12.4% 100.0%
Henry Ford College 53.3% 5.2% 0.0% 3.7% 13.7% 12.6% 11.5% 100.0%
Jackson College 37.3% 11.6% 0.9% 5.9% 14.9% 16.0% 13.5% 100.0%
Kalamazoo Valley Community College 45.0% 8.0% 4.3% 9.8% 11.9% 10.6% 10.5% 100.0%
Kellogg Community College 43.1% 5.5% 0.4% 17.6% 11.8% 11.0% 10.5% 100.0%
Kirtland Community College 34.8% 6.7% 0.3% 10.7% 20.7% 13.2% 13.7% 100.0%
Lake Michigan College 35.9% 6.5% 0.0% 9.8% 13.5% 20.2% 14.0% 100.0%
Lansing Community College 32.4% 10.0% 1.1% 18.0% 14.0% 14.0% 10.5% 100.0%
Macomb Community College 38.9% 6.6% 3.0% 15.0% 10.6% 13.4% 12.5% 100.0%
Mid Michigan College 45.7% 7.0% 2.7% 7.0% 12.5% 15.9% 9.2% 100.0%
Monroe County Community College 40.9% 7.2% 0.7% 11.6% 10.8% 14.8% 13.9% 100.0%
Montcalm Community College 40.1% 6.5% 2.6% 14.5% 10.1% 13.1% 13.1% 100.0%
Mott Community College 38.5% 6.2% 1.1% 10.9% 14.1% 13.8% 15.5% 100.0%
Muskegon Community College 45.7% 6.6% 2.0% 9.6% 12.7% 11.9% 11.5% 100.0%
North Central Michigan College 38.3% 9.1% 0.9% 10.7% 16.1% 13.5% 11.4% 100.0%
Northwestern Michigan College 41.3% 7.2% 0.4% 15.6% 10.4% 15.3% 9.8% 100.0%
Oakland Community College 39.2% 7.6% 0.2% 14.2% 10.1% 15.3% 13.5% 100.0%
Schoolcraft College 38.4% 6.6% 1.7% 15.5% 13.8% 11.3% 12.8% 100.0%
Southwestern Michigan College 30.9% 10.3% 0.0% 8.2% 20.4% 15.5% 14.7% 100.0%
St. Clair County Community College 41.8% 6.1% 1.4% 9.3% 13.4% 15.6% 12.5% 100.0%
Washtenaw Community College 42.8% 9.0% 1.0% 11.8% 12.6% 10.9% 12.0% 100.0%
Wayne County Community College 31.2% 5.3% 2.2% 13.2% 17.0% 15.5% 15.7% 100.0%
West Shore Community College 34.3% 5.4% 3.8% 11.0% 10.8% 19.7% 15.0% 100.0%
State Average 40.1% 7.2% 1.5% 11.2% 13.5% 14.4% 12.1%
Table of Contents Page

Table 28
Expenses by Activity
2022‐23

 Data are current as of 12/13/2023  Page 1 of 1 
Page 15 of 19 03/10/2024

25



Sorted ↓

Community College Name Salaries Fringe Benefits Compensation Total Expenses
Compensation % 
of Total Expenses

Henry Ford College $50,021,052 $32,420,456 $82,441,508 $95,012,312 86.77%
Grand Rapids Community College $59,807,112 $41,362,094 $101,169,206 $119,437,162 84.70%
Macomb Community College $71,814,146 $36,668,405 $108,482,551 $128,395,246 84.49%
Alpena Community College $9,217,398 $5,973,108 $15,190,506 $18,196,645 83.48%
Schoolcraft College $48,666,857 $30,481,126 $79,147,983 $96,526,495 82.00%
Kalamazoo Valley Community College $35,653,781 $19,689,081 $55,342,862 $67,734,482 81.71%
Delta College $35,973,698 $24,995,867 $60,969,565 $74,896,879 81.40%
Monroe County Community College $13,826,182 $6,472,585 $20,298,767 $24,943,053 81.38%
Kellogg Community College $22,647,078 $13,379,354 $36,026,432 $44,494,985 80.97%
Lansing Community College $60,282,993 $26,373,088 $86,656,081 $109,204,841 79.35%
Muskegon Community College $18,157,328 $11,686,517 $29,843,845 $37,647,601 79.27%
Montcalm Community College $7,973,590 $5,760,414 $13,734,004 $17,496,460 78.50%
Oakland Community College $69,663,911 $32,993,356 $102,657,267 $131,294,423 78.19%
St. Clair County Community College $15,653,636 $5,377,806 $21,031,442 $27,219,471 77.27%
Mott Community College $39,001,590 $23,938,338 $62,939,928 $82,364,813 76.42%
Washtenaw Community College $55,468,687 $24,153,264 $79,621,951 $104,664,519 76.07%
Northwestern Michigan College $23,832,838 $13,543,119 $37,375,957 $49,259,015 75.88%
Gogebic Community College $5,201,078 $2,942,366 $8,143,444 $10,848,718 75.06%
Kirtland Community College $7,302,916 $3,310,663 $10,613,579 $14,316,179 74.14%
Bay de Noc Community College $9,506,700 $4,387,884 $13,894,584 $18,886,952 73.57%
Mid Michigan College $10,357,946 $8,386,710 $18,744,656 $26,597,806 70.47%
Lake Michigan College $14,552,927 $8,475,338 $23,028,265 $32,895,477 70.00%
Southwestern Michigan College $10,385,829 $5,493,760 $15,879,589 $22,868,442 69.44%
Glen Oaks Community College $5,981,941 $2,714,070 $8,696,011 $12,531,607 69.39%
West Shore Community College $6,243,547 $4,076,423 $10,319,970 $14,981,821 68.88%
Jackson College $19,565,107 $8,202,585 $27,767,692 $41,232,343 67.34%
Wayne County Community College $47,819,327 $12,623,406 $60,442,733 $93,436,400 64.69%
North Central Michigan College $7,917,775 $4,587,645 $12,505,420 $19,386,099 64.51%
State Aggregate $782,496,970 $420,468,828 $1,202,965,798 $1,536,770,246 78.28%

Table 35
Salary and Fringe Benefit Costs
2022‐23

 Data are current as of 3/4/2024  Page 1 of 1 
Page 16 of 19 03/10/2024

26



Projections of High School Graduates

2000-01 105,741     9,226         96,515       2,139         79,452       12,060       875            1,989         

2001-02 104,365     9,364         95,001       2,284         77,947       11,619       901            2,250         

2002-03 109,803     9,502         100,301     2,246         82,744       12,197       881            2,233         

2003-04 108,177     9,354         98,823       2,405         81,568       11,737       888            2,225         

2004-05 109,633     8,051         101,582     2,575         82,259       13,129       836            2,383         

2005-06 110,226     7,644         102,582     2,727         81,795       14,249       849            2,676         

2006-07 120,360     8,522         111,838     3,213         86,495       17,945       949            2,711         

2007-08 123,576     8,393         115,183     3,500         88,225       19,158       967            2,807         

2008-09 121,261     8,519         112,742     3,538         85,642       19,219       873            2,812         

2009-10 118,119     8,233         109,886     3,721         83,188       19,278       891            2,808         

2010-11 113,304     7,287         106,017     3,022         79,431       18,191       801            2,672         119            2,791         1,781         

2011-12 113,996     8,550         105,446     2,987         78,678       17,978       877            2,743         90              2,833         2,093         

2012-13 114,023     9,813         104,210     3,324         77,503       16,949       833            2,973         114            3,087         2,514         

2013-14 113,390     10,388       103,002     3,330         76,364       16,622       792            3,079         103            3,182         2,712         

2014-15 113,960     10,962       102,998     5,361         74,939       16,501       712            3,264         103            3,367         2,118         

2015-16 111,282     9,447         101,835     5,703         73,489       16,175       704            3,376         91              3,467         2,297         

2016-17 110,218     7,932         102,286     5,962         73,228       16,279       695            3,433         107            3,540         2,582         

2017-18 112,240     8,360         103,880     6,567         73,409       16,699       618            3,734         136            3,870         2,717         

2018-19 111,790     8,110         103,688     7,174         72,931       16,017       628            3,784         91              3,875         3,063         

2019-20 108,160     7,880         100,280     7,040         70,380       15,200       620            3,880         90              3,970         3,100         

2020-21 105,640     7,480         98,170       7,190         68,800       14,380       550            4,050         90              4,140         3,260         

2021-22 107,390     8,260         99,130       7,490         69,180       14,280       570            4,100         100            4,200         3,680         

2022-23 106,020     8,520         97,510       8,050         66,590       14,450       570            4,060         80              4,140         3,880         

2023-24 107,140     8,690         98,460       8,090         66,660       14,720       540            4,090         90              4,190         4,480         

2024-25 107,670     8,930         98,740       8,410         66,510       14,600       560            4,160         100            4,250         4,670         

2025-26 103,880     8,910         94,970       8,200         63,460       14,080       480            4,080         80              4,150         4,950         

2026-27 102,030     9,190         92,830       7,980         61,260       14,230       450            4,130         90              4,210         5,000         

2027-28 100,820     9,330         91,500       8,150         59,680       14,040       440            4,200         100            4,300         5,250         

2028-29 102,070     9,800         92,270       8,320         60,110       14,010       430            4,280         70              4,340         5,540         

2029-30 100,430     9,060         91,370       8,070         59,600       13,570       430            4,520         80              4,580         5,800         

2030-31 99,950       9,070         90,880       7,660         59,430       13,970       400            4,450         5,810         !

2031-32 100,920     9,250         91,670       7,750         60,110       13,740       430            4,640         5,860         !

2032-33 100,230     9,230         91,000       7,900         59,270       13,860       410            4,680         5,870         !

2033-34 100,370     9,250         91,120       7,990         59,390       13,590       400            5,010         5,880         !

2034-35 98,580       9,030         89,550       7,820         57,690       13,830       370            5,180         5,800         !

2035-36 97,260       8,910         88,340       7,580         57,100       13,640       360            5,040         5,650         !

2036-37 95,100       8,730         86,370       

 = Projected value (values are rounded to nearest 10). ! Two or more races values for SY 2030-31 to 2035-36 are estimates and not a fully projected value. 

Citation: Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education, Knocking at the College Door: Projections of High School Graduates , 2020, www.knocking.wiche.edu.

Native 
Hawaiian/ 

Other 
Pacific 
Islander

Non-Hispanic

Asian/Pacifi
c Islander 

(Combined)

Two or More 
Races

MICHIGAN

Grand Total 
Public & 
Private 
School 

Graduates

Private 
School 

Graduates

School 
Year

Public School Graduates

Public 
School 

Graduates 
Total

White Black

Notes: See the Knocking at the College Door Technical Appendix at www.knocking.wiche.edu/report/technical-appendix/ for details about the data and methodology used for these projections.
Graduate projections begin SY 2019-20 for Public Schools, SY 2017-18 for Private Schools, and the Grand Total is fully projected beginning SY 2019-20 but includes the Private school 
projected portion SY 2017-18 and 2018-19. Each series is independently projected, so they may not exactly sum to the totals. Public school graduates through SY 2012-13 and enrollments 
through SY 2018-19 are from the National Center for Education Statistics (NCES) Common Core of Data, https://nces.ed.gov/ccd/. See the Technical Appendix for full data details, including 
about private school data, which are estimates computed from survey-based data from NCES Private School Universe Survey, https://nces.ed.gov/surveys/pss/. Specific to Michigan: Public 
school graduates for SY 2013-14 to 2018-19 compiled March to August 2020 from data available originally at https://www.mischooldata.org/college-progression-by-graduating-class/ and more 
recently at https://www.mischooldata.org/college-enrollment-by-hs-1/ (the source data URL changed). WICHE observes what appears to be some recategorization/category changes with the 
numbers of graduates categorized as Hispanic, White and Two or more races between 2013-14 and 2014-15, but no adjustments were made with the data obtained and these values are for 
historical reference and not critical to the projections. Michigan private school estimates for grades 8 and 9 for SY 2015-16 had coefficients of variation >=50% and were suppressed; all other 
grade-level estimates for this year had CVs between 39% and 48%. In practical terms, the estimates indicated a 25% to 30% increase in the number of students in each grade between 2013-14 
and 2015-16, which was not sustained (was reversed in almost equal measure) to 2017-18. The estimates for SY 2015-16 were not used in the projection methodology. These estimates and 
projections should be used with caution.

Hispanic

American 
Indian/
Alaska 
Native

Asian

Western Interstate Commission for Higher Education, Knocking at the College Door , 2020, www.knocking.wiche.edu. As of 12/15/2020Page 17 of 19 03/10/2024

27



Unemployment by County Rank
December 2023
From Michigan Labor Market Information: 
https://milmi.org/DataSearch/Unemployment-by-County

Rank Area Rate
1 Livingston County, MI 2.5%
2 Oakland County, MI 2.6%
2 Washtenaw County, MI 2.6%
4 Ottawa County, MI 2.7%
5 Kent County, MI 2.8%
5 Clinton County, MI 2.8%
7 Eaton County, MI 3.1%
8 Grand Traverse County, MI 3.2%
8 Ingham County, MI 3.2%
8 Ionia County, MI 3.2%
8 Allegan County, MI 3.2%
8 Barry County, MI 3.2%
8 Kalamazoo County, MI 3.2%
8 Macomb County, MI 3.2%

15 Menominee County, MI 3.4%
15 Midland County, MI 3.4%
15 Branch County, MI 3.4%
18 St. Clair County, MI 3.6%
18 Jackson County, MI 3.6%
18 Leelanau County, MI 3.6%
21 Monroe County, MI 3.7%
21 Dickinson County, MI 3.7%
23 Berrien County, MI 3.8%
23 St. Joseph County, MI 3.8%
23 Lenawee County, MI 3.8%
23 Isabella County, MI 3.8%
27 Montcalm County, MI 3.9%
27 Newaygo County, MI 3.9%
27 Gratiot County, MI 3.9%
27 Houghton County, MI 3.9%
27 Shiawassee County, MI 3.9%
32 Wayne County, MI 4.0%
32 Huron County, MI 4.0%
32 Calhoun County, MI 4.0%
32 Cass County, MI 4.0%
36 Hillsdale County, MI 4.1%
36 Muskegon County, MI 4.1%
38 Marquette County, MI 4.2%

Page 18 of 19 03/10/2024

28

https://milmi.org/DataSearch/Unemployment-by-County


38 Lapeer County, MI 4.2%
38 Alpena County, MI 4.2%
41 Sanilac County, MI 4.3%
41 Wexford County, MI 4.3%
43 Osceola County, MI 4.4%
43 Otsego County, MI 4.4%
43 Bay County, MI 4.4%
43 Gogebic County, MI 4.4%
43 Genesee County, MI 4.4%
48 Van Buren County, MI 4.5%
49 Saginaw County, MI 4.6%
49 Charlevoix County, MI 4.6%
49 Missaukee County, MI 4.6%
49 Mecosta County, MI 4.6%
53 Tuscola County, MI 4.7%
54 Mason County, MI 4.8%
54 Benzie County, MI 4.8%
54 Delta County, MI 4.8%
57 Antrim County, MI 5.2%
57 Keweenaw County, MI 5.2%
59 Kalkaska County, MI 5.4%
60 Iron County, MI 5.7%
61 Gladwin County, MI 5.8%
61 Emmet County, MI 5.8%
61 Oceana County, MI 5.8%
64 Manistee County, MI 5.9%
64 Iosco County, MI 5.9%
66 Crawford County, MI 6.0%
66 Baraga County, MI 6.0%
66 Chippewa County, MI 6.0%
66 Lake County, MI 6.0%
70 Ontonagon County, MI 6.1%
71 Clare County, MI 6.2%
72 Ogemaw County, MI 6.5%
72 Luce County, MI 6.5%
74 Alcona County, MI 6.7%
75 Arenac County, MI 7.1%
76 Schoolcraft County, MI 7.8%
77 Presque Isle County, MI 8.0%
78 Oscoda County, MI 8.2%
78 Montmorency County, MI 8.2%
80 Roscommon County, MI 8.4%
81 Alger County, MI 8.7%
82 Cheboygan County, MI 10.8%
83 Mackinac County, MI 15.5%

Page 19 of 19 03/10/2024

29



1 

To: NMC Board of Trustees 

From: Nick Nissley, President 

Subject: March Mid-Month Update 

Date: Wednesday, March 13, 2024 

Dear Board of Trustees, 

Since our February Board meeting the following are key updates. 

Benzie County Annexation Possibility 

This next month, we’ll be concluding our ‘Listening Sessions’ (which have been on-going for the past 

half-year, since early fall) where I am (along with trustees/administration) meeting with key Benzie 

County stakeholders and listening, to better understand the support and resistance, as well as what’s 

being imagined in terms of the annexation possibility. These approximately 30 meetings have been 

designed to help the College/trustees better gauge the probability of success, and to better understand 

what the community wants from such a relationship. The final two sessions are: 

● March 14th at 8:30 am: Frankfort/Elberta Chamber of Commerce

● April 15th at 5:30 pm: Benzie Republicans

In addition, as we’ve listened we’ve refined our value proposition – we’ve moved from ‘in-district 

tuition’ to ‘educational reinvestment in Benzie County’. We’ve floated this idea at recent listening

sessions, and as you might expect, the audiences have responded positively. We are also planning for a 

meeting intended to more fully share the ‘community reinvestment strategy’. The “You Spoke, We 

Listened” community meeting will be open to all county residents and will be held on Saturday, March 

16th, at 10:00, at the Mills Community House in Benzonia.  

I am looking forward to an April Study Session to help facilitate the Board’s decision whether to 

proceed with the annexation possibility. Tipping my hand, I’m encouraged by what I’ve heard over the 

past more than half-year as we listened and continued to refine our value proposition. I believe we have 

a solid ‘what’s in it for me’ answer for taxpayers that has responded to what they’ve told us they’re 

looking for from an annexation. My deepest thanks for your active support, showing up and actively 

engaging in many of these meetings, hearing first-hand what the community is thinking and feeling. All 

of you have helped shape a response to the question that the county’s residents initially approached us 

with:  

MEMO 

Office of the President 

30



2 

How might NMC help improve the lives of Benzie County residents by providing greater access 

to affordable post-high school education and training, improve students’ lives, and at the same 

time benefiting employers, by providing a home-grown talent pipeline and a better-trained 

workforce, ultimately contributing to the economic development of Benzie County and the 

prosperity of its citizens?

Rightsizing 

Following up from the fall Board Study Session, where we shared the College’s plan for ‘rightsizing’, 

we developed a voluntary separation program (VSP) to faculty members at step 13, 14, or 15
NMC Faculty Salary Schedule. We offered a 60% incentive for retirement in May 2024, and a 40% 

incentive for retirement in May 2025. Four faculty members have applied for the May 2024 incentive 

and two applied for 2025. The approximate impact of these six early retirements will net labor savings 

of approximately $600,000 per year. I’m especially proud of the collaboration between the President’s 

Council and the Faculty Association in shaping this strategy, allowing us to realize the savings necessary 

without needing to undertake a more indiscriminate retrenchment. 

Campus Safety and Emergency Preparedness  

As we continue to engage and empower our employees to create a culture of safety, belonging, and 

preparedness, a Request for Proposals has been issued for a campus safety and security assessment. The 

Emergency Management Team (EMT) and Leadership Council are participating in ongoing discussions 

regarding safety and training, including having building walk-throughs with Campus Security.   

Comprehensive Brand Assessment and Strategy Development 

Building on the momentum of the strategic plan, foundation strategic plan and campus master plan 

development, I am pleased to share the college is beginning work on a comprehensive brand assessment 

and brand strategy development. This important project will be funded primarily through a $100,000 

Lumina Foundation grant secured for this purpose by PRMC and the NMCF. After a competitive RFP 

process and thorough review, President’s Council has chosen industry leader Stamats as our partner. Just 

as we modeled in the strategic plan, the transparent and collaborative process with our stakeholders, 

including the Board of Trustees, will be critical to the project’s success. The work is planned to be 

completed this fall. The final strategy recommendations will inform the college’s next strategic plan as 

we continue to refresh our brand identity and engage with our various audiences.  

Alliance for Innovation and Transformation (AFIT) 

The AFIT CEO and Reps Forum was held last week in Arizona, where planning began for the Summer 

Institute. This year’s theme is “Looking Ahead, to Empower the Future Today” with a focus on artificial 

intelligence (AI) and emerging technologies. Jason Slade, Todd Neibauer, and I participated in the 

February session and we’ll be developing the NMC team that will participate in the full summer 

conference in July. 

Phi Theta Kappa 

Last Sunday, we held the 2024 Spring Phi Theta Kappa Induction Ceremony at Northwestern Michigan 

College. There were 90 inductees into NMC's Phi Theta Kappa - Alpha Rho Pi Chapter. Special thanks 

to our co-advisors, Jeremy Heinlein and Lisa Thomas, who were joined by NMC PTK alumni Amber 

Birgy Marsh, Hannah Witte, and Shane McClellan, and others who helped celebrate these amazing 

Hawk Owls! A very special touch, was the vase holding a single sunflower that was displayed on stage, 

to remind us of Kari Kahler and her contributions to Phi Theta Kappa.  

31



3 

Freshwater Research and Innovation Center 

We continue to shape the proposed Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, per the following schedule.    

These replaced the original joint venture language due to concerns from legal. In March and April, these 

will be ready to be shared with the Board’s Building and Site Committee, for their review and input. 

1. March 1st – March 15th

Seek feedback/input from member partners on Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws. 

2. March 15th – March 30th

Miller Canfield integrates member partners’ input. 

3. March 30th – April 30th

NMC’s Building and Site Committee and Discovery Center (DCP) Board review/input. 

4. May 1st – May 30th

Jason and Matt integrate NMC, DCP, and member partners’ input, with Miller Canfield. 

5. June 1st – June 30th

NMC BOT and DCP Board approvals. 

6. July 1st

New ‘joint venture’ organization formed and functioning. 

In addition, Jason has spearheaded a partnering effort, collaboratively engaging State departments to 

join in supporting the Freshwater Research and Innovation Center. Those State agencies include: LEO, 

MEDC, Office of Rural Prosperity, EGLE, and MSHDA. Together, we’re shaping an MOU between the 

state of Michigan, the Freshwater Research and Innovation Center, and Traverse Connect, to activate 

northern Michigan’s bluetech economic sector. This will allow us to more effectively leverage State 

resources and programs, and to establish a collaboration between us. The purpose will be to leverage co-

investment and programming resources to ultimately grow bluetech jobs in the northwest Michigan 

region. Together, we recognize that FRIC and the activation of Northern Michigan’s bluetech economic 

sector will create a platform for innovators and entrepreneurs to develop transformative solutions that 

put the State of Michigan squarely at the center of the bluetech innovation revolution. 

Lastly, this past week, we had a very productive meeting of NMC’s and DCP’s board leadership (Laura 

Oblinger and Greg Luyt, respectively), joined by Jason Slade and Matt McDonough, and myself. It was 

an opportunity to ‘check-in’ and look ahead at what we’ll need to address as we literally develop a new 

organization – the Freshwater Research and Innovation Center. A special thanks to Chair Oblinger for 

investing so much time and energy in the relationship building that will drive the success of this new 

‘joint venture’. 

Congressionally Directed Spending Request (Earmark) to Senator Stabenow's Office 

Special thanks to Jason Slade who collaborated with our Freshwater Research and Innovation Center 

partners to lead the creation and submission of a fiscal year 2025 congressionally directed spending 

(earmark) request to Senator Stabenow's office, in the amount of $1.25 million. This funding will be 

32



4 

used to support the buildout of innovative lab and technology space required to support and incubate 

start-ups, driving the burgeoning bluetech economic growth for the region. As you know, our vision is 

for The Freshwater Research and Innovation Center to house almost 40,000 square feet of technology-

focused labs and offices designed to encourage “bluetech” innovation. Unlike a traditional research 

facility, this center will contain the support necessary to incubate and accelerate early start-ups 

businesses. This funding will help build out the critical wet labs and research space necessary for 

technology and business development resulting in job creation and positive economic impact for the 

region. 

Title IV Compliance 

Recently, the regulations implementing title IV of the Higher Education Act were amended and will 

become effective, July 1, 2024. There’s one issue in the new regulations that will create a compliance 

challenge for NMC and all other colleges.  

The new regulations, which go into effect July 1, 2024, have materially changed to say (specifically, the 

underlined text): 

(g) Public institutions. (1) The Department considers a domestic public institution to be 

financially responsible if the institution— 

(i) Notifies the Department that it is designated as a public institution by the State, local, or 

municipal government entity, Tribal authority, or other government entity that has the legal 

authority to make that designation; and 

(ii) Provides a letter or other documentation acceptable to the Department and signed by an 

official of that government entity confirming that the institution is a public institution and is 

backed by the full faith and credit of the government entity. 

That the U.S. Dept. of Education is now mandating confirmation that the institution is “backed by the 

full faith and credit” of the state or other governmental entity, creates a potential problem for NMC and, 

likely all other public institutions of higher education in Michigan, because Article IX, Section 18 of the 

Michigan Constitution provides: “The credit of the state shall not be granted to, nor in aid of any person, 

association or corporation, public or private, except as authorized in this constitution.” Our legal counsel 

has observed, that it is not clear at this time whether the U.S. Dept. of Education is aware of this 

potential conflict between what the new regulation mandates and what the Michigan constitution 

prohibits. 

Because the Title IV statute appears to permit the Secretary of Education to accept other information or 

confirmation to demonstrate the financial responsibility of public institutions, it seems that the U.S. 

Dept. of Education’s insistence on a “full faith and credit” letter is unnecessary and there may be other 

means to comply with the statute and satisfy the U.S. Dept. of Education. Legal counsel has advised us 

to engage with the MCCA as a next step to discuss strategies for potentially contacting the U.S. Dept. of 

Education to seek clarification and discuss a potential solution for the collective group, as other 

33



5 

community colleges could receive similar requests. Gabe Schneider is aiding us with MCCA 

engagement. 

Meeting with Representative Coffia 

On Friday, March 15th, I am scheduled to meet with Representative Coffia, along with Gabe Schneider. 

We are inviting her to campus to discuss NMC’s legislative priorities, and to hear more about the 

Representative’s legislative agenda, as well. It will especially allow us to discuss: community college 

funding, the possible Benzie annexation, housing challenges in Traverse City and NMC’s campus 

master plan-driven housing growth strategy, as well as the College’s capital outlay funding needs. 

Black History Month 

NMC Dining, faculty, staff, and students collaborated for Food for the Soul events in honor of Black 

History Month. The meal offerings had over 450 participants! 

Trends in Higher Education Articles 

 As promised, I’m sharing relevant articles (that I and President's Council have been reading) that 

speak to trends, risks, challenges, and opportunities in community colleges, to help keep us informed 

and to invite conversation about how NMC is addressing such issues. This month, I’m sharing: 

● AI Will Shake Up Higher Ed. Are Colleges Ready?, The Chronicle for Higher Education 

● Michigan Hybrid Program Aims to Reach 50,000 Adult Students Inside Higher Ed

Upcoming Dates of Note 

● March 18–Regular monthly Board of Trustees meeting, Hagerty Center–Note: Dinner with 

Student Government Association will be held prior to the start of the regular meeting. 

● April 12—NMC Foundation Scholarship Celebration 

● April 22—Regular monthly Board of Trustees meeting, TJNIC 106/107 

34

https://www.chronicle.com/article/ai-will-shake-up-higher-ed-are-colleges-ready
https://www.chronicle.com/article/ai-will-shake-up-higher-ed-are-colleges-ready
https://www.insidehighered.com/news/tech-innovation/teaching-learning/2024/03/12/michigan-hybrid-program-aims-reach-50000-adult?utm_source=Inside+Higher+Ed&utm_campaign=b18d84e65c-DNU_2021_COPY_02&utm_medium=email&utm_term=0_1fcbc04421-b18d84e65c-197593961&mc_cid=b18d84e65c&mc_eid=c38e40c9db


       Northern Strategies 360 
                         Comprehensive Government Affairs Solutions          
 
 
148 E. Front Street, Suite 203               Phone:   (517) 449-6453 
Traverse City, MI 49685                           www.northernstrategies360.com             

 
MEMO 

 
To:    Northwestern Michigan College Board of Trustees 
Cc:  Dr. Nick Nissley, Ed.D. 
From:  Gabe Schneider, Founder/Principal, Northern Strategies 360 
Date:  March 8, 2024 
Re:  State/Federal Legislative Update 
 
 
State 
 
2024 MCCA Legislative Priorities 
Make community college affordable for all to boost community vitality. 

• Provide recent high school graduates the opportunity to attend community college tuition-free for 2 
years to earn a certificate, associate degree, or transfer to a university. (Executive Budget 
Recommendation, Education Omnibus, Sec. 248 Michigan Achievement Scholarship) 

• Ensure our neediest students have financial support for basic needs and non-tuition costs of attendance, 
including food, housing, transportation, technology and textbooks. (Executive Budget Recommendation, 
Education Omnibus, Sec. 247 Reconnect and Sec. 248 Michigan Achievement Scholarship) 

• Make the Reconnect expansion permanent. (SB 406 of 2023) 
 
Update college infrastructure. 

• Dedicate $100 million for improvements to infrastructure, technology, equipment, maintenance, and 
campus safety, and to develop affordable, on-campus student housing where it is needed. 

• Increase the state’s match for community college capital outlay projects by 25%. 
 
Increase operations support for community colleges. 

• Invest 10% more ongoing funding into community college operations to help keep up with rising costs 
while maintaining affordable and high-quality programs. 

 
Improve student success outcomes. 

• Expand opportunities for dual enrollment, establish student-friendly transfer pathways, and provide on-
demand access to key data. 

 
Grow Michigan's talented workforce. 

• Dedicate funding for community colleges to develop workforce training and technical programs in 
partnership with employers in high-demand fields and purchase related equipment for emerging 
industries. (Executive Budget Recommendation, General Omnibus, Sec. 11-1004 Talent Solutions) 

 
FY25 State Budget 
With the budget process having kicked off with the Governor’s Executive Budget Recommendation, 
Appropriations Subcommittees have started to meet.  Much of the attention has focused on the Governor’s 
Community College Guarantee (CCG) proposal.  While supportive, the MCCA is asking for three key changes: 

• Increasing the “first dollar” grant to $2,000 for Pell eligible students for critical support to stay enrolled.   
• Convert the class of 2023 to the proposed funding methodology. 
• Pair the CCG with a transfer guarantee for community college graduates to pursue bachelor’s degrees at 

4-year college and universities (including 3+1) programs) 

35



 2 

There is no clear consensus from MCCA members about making changes to the in-district vs. out-of-district 
element of the CCG.  However current boilerplate language does take into account tiered tuition rates (covering 
the cost of a “program of study”).   
 
Given the limited availability of one-time dollars this budget cycle it does not appear that the House or Senate is 
interested in supporting a significant investment in ITEMS funding.  Instead, they are focused on funding for 
items related to student financial aid. 
 
Further, while there has been some positive feedback for increasing community college operations funding, 
there is also a general feeling of frustration with the equitability of the existing performance funding formula.  
There does not appear to be a significant amount of interest in flowing more funding through the existing 
formula.  One alternative could be a separate funding source contingent on implementing best practices with 
strings attached to the funding. 
 
Capital Outlay 
The MCCA is not pushing hard for a capital outlay bill.  There has been some interest from members, but it is 
not robust.   
 
Federal 
 
FY25 Congressional Directed Spending Requests 
We are in the process of completing and submitting requests for: 

• Freshwater Research & Innovation Center ($1,250,000) 
 
Letter of Public Status 
We continue to work with the MCCA, MiLEAP and the Governor’s Washington, DC office on compliance with 
new U.S. Department of Education regulations requiring a letter of Public Status.  The U.S. Department of 
Education has not yet released formal guidance on the new rules effective July 1, 2024 that require this updated 
letter.    The new regulations state: 
 
(g) Public institutions. (1) The Department considers a domestic public institution to be financially responsible 
if the institution—  
 
(i) Notifies the Department that it is designated as a public institution by the State, local, or municipal 
government entity, Tribal authority, or other government entity that has the legal authority to make that 
designation; and 
 
(ii) Provides a letter or other documentation acceptable to the Department and signed by an official of that 
government entity confirming that the institution is a public institution and is backed by the full faith and credit 
of the government entity in the following circumstances— 
(A) Before the institution's initial certification as a public institution; 
(B) Upon a change in ownership and request to be recognized as a public institution; or 
(C) Upon request by the Department, which could include during the recertification of a public institution. 
 
(iii) Is not subject to a condition of past performance under § 668.174; and 
 
(iv) Is not subject to an automatic mandatory triggering event as described in paragraph (c) of this section or a 
discretionary triggering event as described in paragraph (d) of this section that the Department determines will 
have a significant adverse effect on the financial condition of the institution. 
 

36



 3 

Based on an initial legal review it appears that this regulation creates a potential problem for NMC and other 
public institutions of higher education in Michigan because Article IX, Section 18 of the Michigan Constitution 
provides “The credit of the state shall not be granted to, nor in aid of any person, association or corporation, 
public or private, except as authorized in this constitution.”  It is not clear at this time whether the U.S. Dept. of 
Education is aware of this potential conflict between what the new regulation mandates and what the Michigan 
constitution prohibits. 
 
Further complicating matters is that the Community College Act of 1966, 389.127, Sec. 127 (2) states that: 
Subject to applicable charter, statutory, and constitutional limitations, the board may pledge the full faith and 
credit of the district for notes or obligations issued pursuant to this section. If the funds primarily pledged for 
the payment of notes or obligations to which the full faith and credit of the district has been pledged are 
insufficient, the notes or obligations shall be a first budget obligation of the district payable from any available 
funds 
 
We continue to work with the above identified organizations to address this issue while recognizing that it is a 
broader conversation beyond just NMC. 
 
Bipartisan Workforce Pell Act 
Unfortunately, the Bipartisan Workforce Pell Act did not proceed to the House floor for a vote due to stiff 
opposition from several education associations, particularly regarding the pay-for in the legislation. The ACCT 
will continue its advocacy and will look for another opportunity to pass the bill this year.  

37



To: NMC Board of Trustees

From: Nick Nissley, President
President’s Council

Subject: March 2024 Executive Summary

Financial Report—Troy Kierczynski, Vice President of Finance and Administration
● Revenue increased by 13% when comparing year-to-date January 2024 to January 2023 due

primarily to timing of property tax receipts and additional investment income in FY24. Expenses
increased by 8% when comparing year-to-date January 2024 to January 2023,

● Salaries and wages expenses are tracking significantly below budget, while purchased services
expenses are tracking significantly over budget. These two variances are directly related to the
transition of newly hired adjunct instructors and supplemental staff to Edustaff.

● The next FY25 Budget Update will be at the May 20, 2024, regular Board meeting.

Enrollment Report—Todd Neibauer, Vice President for Student Services and Technologies
● Summer headcount is currently up 54 students over Summer 2023.
● Orientation for new students is scheduled for April 19, 2024.

PRMC—Diana Fairbanks, Associate Vice President of Public Relations, Marketing, and Communications
Paid Media⬆YOY

● Applications: 103
● Accounts: 113

● Work is beginning on the comprehensive brand assessment and strategy development
with Stamats, funded by a Lumina Foundation grant.

● Nexus magazine is transitioning into a new community engagement piece with a targeted
launch date of fall 2024. The goal of the new piece is to directly communicate NMC’s
value proposition with tax payers.

Strategic Plan–Jason Slade, Vice President for Strategic Initiatives
● Strategy 1: Future-Focused Education will be reviewed this month. This strategy is currently on

track with 5 of the 5 objectives currently classified as “green” due to their progress through the
action steps. Objective metrics are trending upward toward target goals with the exception of
credit for prior learning and online courses. The online course percentages were expected as the
college continues to adapt to student demand. Full details are in the memo.

38



Michigan New Jobs Training Program - Jason Slade, Vice President for Strategic Initiatives
● It is NMC’s turn again in the MNJTP funding queue with the following actions for this month:

○ Requesting Board approval of the New Jobs Training Program agreement with CBS Solar
of Copemish, MI. Agreement until March 17, 2034, with the addition of five new jobs,
total budget of $80,000 (new agreement)

○ Agreement amendments with RJG and Shoreline Power Services, Inc. (existing
agreements)

39



NORTHWESTERN MICHIGAN COLLEGE  

BOARD OF TRUSTEES  

MINUTES 

Monday, February 26, 2024 

Timothy J. Nelson Innovation Center 

Room 106/107 
 

CALL TO ORDER—Chair Laura J. Oblinger called the regular meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  

 

OATH OF OFFICE—The Oath of Office as recited by newly appointed trustee Bill Marsh for a 

term that expires December 31, 2024. 

 

ROLL CALL  

Trustees present: Laura J. Oblinger, Andrew K. Robitshek, Chris M. Bott, Kenneth E. Warner, Bill 

F. Marsh, Kennard R. Weaver 

Trustees absent: Douglas S. Bishop  

Also present: President Nick Nissley, Lynne Moritz, Diana Fairbanks, Troy Kierczynski, Kyle 

Morrison, Todd Neibauer, Stephen Siciliano, Hollie DeWalt, Lisa Baldyga, Jason 

Slade, Glenn Wolff, Molly Norville, Alex Bloye, Nicco Pandolfi, Chris Hanna, 

Lindsey Lipke, Carly McCall, Nancy Schulte, Julie Clark 

 

REVIEW OF AGENDA—The agenda was accepted as presented. 

STRATEGIC FOCUS–Mid-Year Recap on Strategic Initiatives—Jason Slade, Vice President of 

Strategic Initiatives, summarized progress made on the five strategies at the mid-way point for year 

two. Highlights of success include: The Experiential Learning Institute; Diversity, Equity, Inclusion 

and Belonging initiatives; Extended Education Services’ workforce development; and the Great 

Lakes Culinary Institute. Year three planning is in an initial development phase, beginning with 

FY25 departmental budgets. Slade also discussed projects underway with loose ties to the current 

strategic plan, such as the Freshwater Research and Innovation Center (FRIC) and the Office of 

Possibilities (OOPs), which is formally part of the NMC Foundation’s strategic plan. 

REPORTS AND PRESENTATIONS 

Program Focus: Career & Employment Fair–The 18th annual Career and Employment fair, 

scheduled for March 7, is open to students and the community. This year, twelve business sponsors 

have covered the expense to host the event. Lindsey Dickinson, Director of Student Success and 

Retention, thanked Public Relations, Marketing, and Communications, and the NMC Foundation for 

their work in supporting and marketing the event. Lisa Baldyga, Employment Readiness Specialist, 

described how she prepares students ahead of the fair by facilitating workshops and visiting 

classrooms. It was noted the fair is also an opportunity for community members and potential 

students to learn about NMC. 

 

Faculty Report: AI and its Impact on Higher Education–Nicco Pandolfi, Librarian, presented on 

the impact of generative artificial intelligence (also known as “GenAI” or “AI”) on teaching and 

learning in higher education. Pandolfi shared guiding assumptions, areas of promise, and areas of 

concern. 

 

 

 

 

40



Northwestern Michigan College  February 26, 2024 

 

 

2 

 

PUBLIC INPUT—There was no public input offered. 

 

UPDATES 

President’s Update—President Nick Nissley elaborated on a few topics from his mid-month update 

(included in the meeting packet), including on the governor’s education budget, Benzie annexation, 

and enrollment trends. Nissley also highlighted upcoming events such as the Taste of Success and 

the AquaHacking the Great Lakes Challenge.  

 

Board Chair Update—Chair Laura Oblinger emphasized potential educational reinvestment in 

Benzie County if residents do vote in support of annexation into the NMC district. Any expenditures 

of the tax revenue must have an “educational nexus.” Oblinger applauded President Nissley and 

college executive staff for the work being done to develop a voluntary separation program for 

faculty as a part of the “rightsizing” charge set forth by the Board.  

 

CONSENT ITEMS–On a motion by Kennard Weaver, seconded by Chris Bott, the following items 

were approved by a unanimous vote as a group without discussion:   

 

K. Minutes of the January 22, 2024, regular meeting  

L. Minutes of the February 1, 2024, study session 

M. Minutes of the February 13, 2024, special meeting  

N. Minutes of the February 19, 2024, special meeting  

O. Enrollment Report—Todd Neibauer, Vice President for Student Services and Technologies 

P. Financial Report—Troy Kierczynski, Vice President of Finance and Administration 

Q. PRMC—Diana Fairbanks, Assoc. V.P. of Public Relations, Marketing, & Communications 

R. Foundation Report—Carly McCall, Director of Alumni Engagement 

S. Executive Committee—Laura Oblinger, Chair 

T. Building and Site Committee—Ken Warner, Committee Chair 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

Resolution of Appreciation–On a motion by Kennard Weaver, seconded by Ken Warner the Board 

adopted a resolution of appreciation for Rachel A. Johnson in recognition of her dedicated service 

and significant contributions to the Northwestern Michigan College Board of Trustees. The motion 

passed with a unanimous vote. 

TART Trail Easement—Ken Warner made a motion, seconded by Chris Bott, authorizing 

administration to grant an easement to the City of Traverse City allowing the installation and 

maintenance of a recreational trail through the southern portion of the Great Lakes Campus property.  

The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

Avigilon Security System Upgrade and Rebuild—On a motion by Chris Bott seconded by 

Kennard Weaver, the Board authorized for administration to enter into a contract with People Driven 

Technology to upgrade and rebuild the electronic door access control system at a cost of $67,000. 

The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 

41



Northwestern Michigan College  February 26, 2024 

 

 

3 

 

Special Liquor License–Kennard Weaver made a motion, seconded by Andy Robitshek, the Board 

adopted a resolution authorizing the organization, through its duly authorized officers, make 

application to the Liquor Control Commission for a special events tasting and wine auction license 

to be in effect on Friday, April 26, 2024, for the Taste of Success event held at the Northwestern 

Michigan College Hagerty Center. The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 

Aircraft Engine Purchase–On a motion by Kennard Weaver, seconded by Andy Robitshek, the 

Board authorized administration to purchase three (3) Lycoming aircraft engines totaling $248,253 

from Air Power, Inc. The motion passed with a unanimous vote. 

 

REVIEW OF FOLLOW-UP REQUESTS—Confirmed there were no requests made by the Board 

that require administrative follow-up for information to be provided at a later date. 

 

ADJOURNMENT—The meeting adjourned at 6:36 p.m.  

 

Recorded by Lynne Moritz, Executive Director of the President’s Office and Board Operations. 

 

 

 

SIGNED______________________________________________________________________  

Laura J. Oblinger, Chair 

 

 

ATTESTED____________________________________________________________________ 

Andrew K. Robitshek, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

42



 
 
 
 
 

MEMO 
Enrollment Services 

 
 
 

 

To: Dr. Nick Nissley, President 
From: Todd Neibauer, VP for Student Services and Technologies 
Date: March 11, 2024 
Subject: Summer 2024 Enrollment Update 

 

 
Summer 2024 

 
Summer enrollment for 2024 is currently up 54 students and 246 contact hours over the same time 
last year. There are also 60 more admits than last year awaiting our first orientation session for new 
summer and fall students which is April 19, 2024. 

 
(Source: Digital Dashboard Same Date Comparison SP2021-2024) 

  
2021 2022 2023 2024 Δ 

Inquiries 460 340 459 477 3.9% 
Applicants 455 331 455 475 4.4% 
% Applied 98.9% 97.4% 99.1% 99.6% 0.5% 
Admits 293 213 260 322 23.9% 
% Admitted 64.4% 64.4% 57.1% 67.8% 10.7% 
Admits Registered 76 42 59 90 52.5% 
% Admits Registered 25.9% 19.7% 22.7% 28.0% 5.3% 
Prior Admits Registered 10 6 4 5 25.0% 
Retained Students 548 555 532 547 2.8% 
% Retained 18.3% 18.0% 18.5% 18.5% 0.0% 
Return Students 62 82 53 60 13.2% 
Average Contact Hours 6.43 6.06 5.8 5.7 -1.7% 
Total Headcount 696 685 648 702 8.3% 
Total Contact Hours 4,475 4,151 3,758 4,004 6.6% 

Tuition 843,043 925,342 854,247 953,859 11.7% 
 

 
Fall 2024 

Applications for fall semester are currently up .5% overall. Registration for the Fall 2024 semester 
opened on March 11, 2024. New student orientations will start on April 21, 2023. 

43



44



45



46



47



FY23 FY 24 YTD  FY 24 Difference
Actual Budget 3/8/2024 Projected vs. Budget Comments

Revenue
Local Sources:

Tuition & Fees 21,323,999$   22,212,097$   17,251,530$   23,815,104$   1,603,007       
Enrollment was higher than expected in Fall / Spring. Also, aviation flight fees and EES revenue are 
trending higher than budgeted. 

Property Taxes 12,663,865     13,900,791     11,319,398     13,902,336     1,545              In line with budget

Total Local Sources 33,987,864     36,112,888     28,570,928     37,717,440     1,604,552       

State Sources 14,609,228     10,696,033     5,827,777       11,043,837     347,804          Currently trending slightly above budget due to higher than expected MPSERS offset receipts

State Property Tax Reimbursement 185,235          130,000          89,057            156,477          26,477            In line with budget

Federal Sources 9,200              -                      -                      -                  -                  GLMA direct funding is now recognized in restricted funds instead of the general fund

Private Sources 1,333,617       1,175,242       607,368          1,175,242       -                  In line with budget

Dividend and Interest Income 544,035          320,000          604,588          879,953          559,953          The College continues to take advantage of a favorable interest rate enviornment

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments (530,514)         -                      -                      -                  -                  Not projected due to volatily of unreal. losses; see quarterly investments memo (Jan/Apr/Jul/Oct)

Other Sources 675,147          495,000          376,939          687,478          192,478          
Increase in extra sales including culinary sales and administrative fees earned from NJTP program 
in FY24

Total Revenue 50,813,812     48,929,163     36,076,656     51,660,428     2,731,265       

Expenses

Salaries and Wages 23,517,092     25,137,688     14,741,734     24,133,631     (1,004,057)      Currently trending below budget due to shift to EduStaff for suppl + adjuncts, and open positions

Benefits 13,441,442     10,286,740     6,705,512       10,454,428     167,688          Currently trending near budget; impacted by increasing health benefit expenses

Purchased Services 3,073,784       2,895,004       2,643,117       4,334,473       1,439,469       Trending above budget due to impacts of EduStaff transition

Supplies & Materials 2,861,325       3,107,437       1,858,382       3,145,429       37,992            Currently trending slightly above budget

Internal Services 82,699            110,273          79,853            102,156          (8,117)             Trending slightly below budget

Other Expenses 1,238,042       1,603,453       942,848          1,743,966       140,513          
Trending above budget for student assistance expenses (offset by Foundation gifts), recruiting 
expenses, and Native tuition waivers

Institutional Expenses 1,919,104       1,700,512       1,290,316       1,987,836       287,324          Budgeted for increases in utilities but electric expenses are currently trending above budget

Maintenance & Renovation 1,565,241       1,944,397       1,219,110       2,100,625       156,228          Maintenance of facilities trending above budget

Professional Development 593,380          600,659          436,684          742,681          142,022          Increased activity in PD events and travel

Capital Outlay 842,128          98,000            108,735          98,000            -                      
Total Expenses 49,134,237     47,484,163     30,026,291     48,843,224     1,359,061       

Transfers Out (In)
Plant Fund - General Maintenance 1,210,000       1,230,000       -                      1,230,000       -                      Budgeted transfer for maintenance of capital

Plant Fund - Technology Maintenance 500,000          500,000          -                      500,000          -                      Budgeted transfer for maintenance of technology

Plant Fund - Facility Fee for Maintenance -                      40,000            -                      40,000            -                      Budgeted transfer for facility fee for maintenance

Plant Fund - Aviation Capital Fund 498,106          450,000          253,008          556,618          106,618          Budgeted transfer for Aviation equipment fund; based on revenue, calculated using tach hours

Plant Fund - New Capital Projects -                      -                      -                      1,000,000       1,000,000       Transfer current year surplus towards new projects

Bd Designated - Strategic Projects 250,000          275,000          -                      425,000          150,000          Budgeted transfer for strategic projects, plus $150k in additional surplus

Bd Designated - Funds for Transformation 50,000            50,000            -                      50,000            -                      Budgeted transfer for funds for transformation

Bd Designated - IAF -                      -                      32,000            32,000            32,000            Transfer IAF funding to restricted fund

Restricted Fund - GLMA Direct Support (1,061,425)      (1,100,000)      -                      (1,100,000)      -                      Transfer MARAD restricted funds to the general fund to support academy operations

Restricted Fund - GLMA Heritage Act -                      -                      -                      -                  -                      
Program Specific -                      -                      (5,056)             (5,056)             (5,056)             Indirect cost rate recovery for ADN to BSN nursing grant

Total Transfers 1,446,680       1,445,000       279,952          2,728,562       1,283,562       

Total Expenses & Transfers 50,580,917     48,929,163     30,306,243     51,571,786     2,642,623       

Net Revenue Over (Under) Expenses 232,895$        -$                5,770,414$     88,642$          88,642$          

Northwestern Michigan College
Income Statement Projections - General Fund

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024
As of 3/8/2024

INTERIM
This statement does not reflect 

year-end results.

48



To: Nick Nissley, President

From: Diana Fairbanks, Associate VP of PR, Marketing and Communications

Date: 3-8-24

Subject: February 2024 Monthly Report

NMC saw good YOY growth in all media categories in February. For paid media we continue to
see improvement in campaign performance, but we are monitoring increases in “cost per click”
across the higher ed segment. This has more than doubled from the previous year and is
especially prevalent in the traditional aged demographic. For program specific campaigns, GLCI
and GLWSI continue to perform very well with expanded geographic reach to support strategies
2 and 5. Earned media performance was up across all categories with top stories including the
aviation hangar expansion, Benzie annexation possibility, Food for the Soul and GLCI. There
was a minor MOM dip in sentiment related to a negative story on the FAFSA delay, but not
directly aimed at NMC. Owned media’s NMC Now e-newsletter highlighted NMC’s efforts to
grow the New Blue Economy and expand dual enrollment. Work continues to transition Nexus
magazine into a new community engagement piece with a targeted launch date of fall 2024. The
goal of the new piece is to directly communicate NMC’s value proposition with tax payers.
Shared media followers were up, but engagement dipped due to a shift in paid campaigns. This
month’s highest performing posts include the aviation trip to Florida, FAFSA, Becki Wooters
from dental and Food for the soul. Finally, we are excited to launch the brand
assessment and strategy development with partner Stamats, funded by a Lumina
Foundation grant. NMC Public Relations, Marketing and Communication key performance
indicators for February 2023 include:

Paid Media⬆
● Applications: 103
● Accounts: 113

Earned Media -⬆
● Media mentions: 126
● Positive/neutral sentiment: 97%
● Publicity value: $2.2

Owned Media⬆
● NMC Now: 907 readers, 50% open rate

Shared Media⬆
● Facebook followers: +10% YOY
● Facebook engagement: -82% YOY
● Instagram followers: +12% YOY
● Instagram engagement: -1% YOY

49



MEMO: Resource Development

To: NMC Board of Trustees
President Nick Nissley, Ed.D.

From: Carly McCall, Director of Alumni Engagement

Date: March 11, 2024

Subj: Foundation Update

Fund Raising – a report on FY24 goals

As of today’s date, the fiscal year is 70% completed and 73% of the budgeted goal of $2,575,000 in
new cash gifts and pledges has been received, with 3,072 gifts and pledges recorded.

FY24 Total Dollars Raised Through the NMC Foundation

$1,703,143 Total cash gifts and pledges received to date (including The Fund for NMC)

$944,000 New documentation of planned gift intentions

+ $183,433 Gross event revenue

$2,830,575 Total raised through gifts, new planned gift commitments, and events

$667,000 Additional cash, received from previously documented planned gifts

Of the all gifts realized (cash, pledges, and planned gifts), donors are impacting the following areas
of the college:

● Unrestricted gifts to the Fund for NMC - $303,440

● Scholarships, both restricted and endowed funds - $1,696,300

● Program support and capital projects at NMC - $647,402

Foundation Initiatives

● Taste of Success is back in person this year! The event, which is the largest fundraiser for
the Great Lakes Culinary Institute, will be Friday, April 26, 2024 with tickets $150 per person.
Tickets and sponsor information is available at nmc.edu/taste-of-success. Tickets are selling
well and sponsorship for the event is at its highest level ever.

● At their February 28, 2024 meeting, members of the Foundation Board participated in a
beneficial discussion about the initial findings of the Facilities Master Plan, following a
presentation by Tower Pinkster. Their feedback and input was recorded and shared back with
the Master Planning Committee.

● The documentation of $944,000 in new planned gifts for this year is a significant
achievement. Based on the standards set during the Be What’s Possible campaign, and
adding a second major gift officer in the summer of 2023, one objective in the Foundation’s
strategic plan is to consistently achieve $1 million in new planned gifts, using a 3-year rolling
average.

1701 East Front Street, Traverse City, MI 49686 231-995-1021

50

https://www.nmc.edu/resources/lobdells/taste-of-success/index.html


Northwestern Michigan College 
Board of Trustees 

Building & Site Committee Minutes 
March 11, 2024 

President’s Office Conference Room 
Tanis Building 

1701 E. Front Street, Traverse City, MI 49686 

Committee Chair Ken Warner called the meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 

Members Present: Ken Warner, Chris Bott 
Members Remote:  Kennard Weaver, via Zoom, from Miami-Dade, Florida 
Others Present: Nick Nissley, Lynne Moritz, Troy Kierczynski, Jason Slade, Jerry Tomczak 

Aviation Hangar Expansion Project 
Jerry Tomczak, Project Manager, Cunningham-Limp, provided an overview of the milestone 
schedule for the Aviation Hangar Expansion Project. The schedule includes dates for issuing 
requests for proposals for an architect, civil engineer, and construction manager. 

There was discussion requesting inclusion of incentives and/or penalties in the service contracts 
to encourage on-time completion. While there are no penalties or incentives in the contract with 
Cunningham-Limp, they can be included in contracts with the construction manager, architect, 
and civil engineering services and an addendum to the Cunningham-Limp contract is possible. 
Construction is anticipated to take 12 to 13 months, with a completion date no later than 
December 31, 2025; there was discussion regarding how the construction timing will impact the 
Aviation program and the academic calendar.  

Next steps for the project include interviewing architects and civil engineers and conducting 
geotechnical soil evaluations and environmental (“phase 1”) survey. The recommendation for 
architect and civil engineers will then go to the Board during the week of April 8, 2024. A 
Special Board Meeting will be scheduled to follow the April 9 Building and Site Committee.  

The committee suggested assessing employment of a project and/or construction manager 
internally for an extended period of time, depending upon the expected future construction and 
renovation projects that are discussed in the pending facilities master plan.  

Freshwater Research and Innovation Center (FRIC)  
The recommended method to partner is for NMC and Discovery Center Pier (DCP) to enter into 
Articles of Incorporation to create a 501(c)(3), temporarily referred to right now as the 
“Freshwater Center.” By-laws are 85% complete, with a goal of completion and 
approval/authorization in June. Discovery Center Pier owns the 17 acres the facility will sit on; 
keeping occupancy at 80-90% will be a goal and responsibility of the college. Lease agreements 
could be written to reduce risk on behalf of the college. 

51

mailto:jtomczak@clc.build


There was a request to review the business (revenue) model for the project and to consider 
academic, sabbatical programming. It was also noted the by-laws must provide a mechanism to 
resolve disputes between partners, including mediation if necessary.  

Campus Master Plan 
Vice President of Finance and Administration Troy Kierczynski provided an update on the 
ongoing facilities master plan. The draft plan is anticipated to be completed by Tower Pinkster in 
early April, with a study session being planned for May or early June and anticipated Board 
approval at the regular meeting of the full Board in June.  

Public Input—There was no public comment offered. 

Other Discussion–The May meeting date of the Building and Site Committee will need to be 
rescheduled.  

The meeting was adjourned at 3:01 p.m.  

Recorded by Lynne Moritz, Executive Director of the President’s Office and Board Operations 

52



Northwestern Michigan College 

Board of Trustees 

Executive Committee Minutes 

March 14, 2024 

Gray Conference Room 202-F 

University Center 

2200 Dendrinos Drive, Traverse City, MI 49686 

Committee Chair Laura Oblinger called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m. 

Members Present: Laura Oblinger, Kennard Weaver 

Members Absent: Chris Bott  

Others Present:  Nick Nissley, Lynne Moritz 

President’s Update 

President Nissley shared an update on the most recent listening session meetings with Benzie 

County residents regarding annexation and the likelihood of other proposals on the November 

ballot for the county. The impact of Governor Whitmer’s Community College Guarantee and 

proposed implementation of the legislation was discussed. Looking ahead at the upcoming 

meeting of the full Board of Trustees, Nissley provided a high-level overview of the FY25 

working budget, which includes an assumption of a 2-3% tuition increase.  

Other Discussion–The agenda for the full Board meeting on March 18, 2024, was reviewed.  

Public Input—There was no public comment offered. 

The meeting was adjourned at 4:29 p.m.  

Recorded by Lynne Moritz, Executive Director of the President’s Office and Board Operations 

53



To: Dr. Nick Nissley, President

From: Jason Slade, Vice President of Strategic Initiatives

Date: March 11, 2024

Subject: Michigan New Jobs Training Program (MNJTP) - New & Amended Agreements for Board
Approval - March 18, 2024 Board of Trustees Meeting

Recommendation
New agreements:
Requesting Board approval of the following New Jobs Training Program agreement:

● CBS Solar of Copemish, MI. Agreement until March 17, 2034, with the addition of five new jobs, total
budget of $80,000.

Agreement amendment:
Requesting Board approval of the following amended New Jobs Training Program agreements:

● RJG Inc. Amend the previous agreement dated March 28, 2023. This agreement increases the budget
from $300,000 to $470,000. Amended agreement date is March 18, 2024.

● Shoreline Power Services Inc. Amend the previous agreement dated September 25, 2023. This agreement
increases the budget from $650,000 to $800,000. Amended agreement date is March 18, 2024.

With the amendment:
● Net new jobs qualified under all agreements are projected at 1,148.
● Training expenditures are now valued at over $10.7M for the region, delivered through 2034.

Requirements of the program
The Michigan New Jobs Training Program, established in 2008, allows community colleges to provide training
for employers who are creating new jobs and/or expanding operations in Michigan. The training for the newly
hired workers is paid by capturing the state income tax associated with the new employees' wages. Eligibility:

● Are full-time, in a new, existing, or expanding business of the employer
● Are not jobs of recalled workers, replacement jobs, or any other job that existed in the employer’s

business within the one-year period preceding the date of an agreement
● Are new jobs that pay at least the county's ALICE rate when the contract is signed

○ ALICE rates for reference: Wexford $16.58, Benzie $18.10, Kalkaska $18.13, Antrim $18.72,
Grand Traverse $19.46, Leelanau $28.40 (highest in the state)

○ Old contract may meet the 175 percent of the Michigan minimum wage
● Are new jobs that result in a net increase in employment in this state for the employer

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83


	+03.18.24 Board Agenda
	E. March 2024 BOT SP Strategy 1 Future Focused Education
	G. Faculty Report - ELI 2024 Board Presentation
	H. FY25 Working Budget Update 3.10.24
	I.1. President's Mid-Month Update for the BOT (March, 2024)
	I.2. 3-8-24 NMC Board Legislative Update Memo
	J. March 2024 Executive Summary (1)
	K. 02.26.24 BoT minutes
	L. MAR 2024 Enrollment Report
	M. 03.11.24 GF Memo and Materials
	N._PRMC BOT Report 3-2024 (1)
	O. BoT3.11.24Foundation Report
	P. 3_12_24 B&S Cmte Minutes (1)
	Q. 03.14.24 Exec Cmte Minutes
	R.1. New Jobs Training Act March 2024 BOT
	R.2. Board Summary 20240318
	R.3. CBS Solar Agreement
	R.4. SPS Agreement Amendment 2024-03
	R.5. RJG Agreement Amendment 2024-03
	R.6. MNJTP Agreements



